
Champaign County Board for Care and Treatment of Persons with a 
Developmental Disability, referred to as 

Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) 
Wednesday, February 25, 2026, 9:00 AM Meeting Agenda 

This meeting will be held in person in the Shields-Carter Room of the 
Bennett Administrative Center, 102 East Main Street, Urbana, IL 61801. 

Members of the public may attend in person or watch the meeting live through this link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557 Meeting ID: 815 5912 4557  

I. Call to order
II. Roll call

III. Approval of Agenda*
IV. Schedules and Timeline.

For information only are the CCDDB 2026 Meeting Schedule posted here
(https://champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/pdfs/ddbmeetsched2026.pdf),
CCMHB 2026 Meeting Schedule posted here
(https://champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/pdfs/mhbmeetsched2026.pdf), and
PY27 Allocation Timeline or “CCDDB Important Dates” posted among public documents
here (https://ccmhddbrds.org).

V. CCDDB Acronyms and Glossary are posted here for information only.
VI. Citizen Input/Public Participation See below for details.**

VII. Chairperson’s Comments – Dr. Anne Robin
VIII. Executive Director’s Comments – Lynn Canfield

IX. Approval of CCDDB Board Meeting Minutes (pages 3-8)*
Action is requested to approve the minutes of the CCDDB’s January 28, 2026 meeting.

X. Vendor Invoice Lists (pages 9-10)*
Action is requested to accept the “Vendor Invoice Lists” and place them on file.

XI. Staff Reports (pages 11- 16) Staff reports are included in the packet.
XII. New Business

a) Special Election (pages 17-20)*
CCDDB by-laws are included as background. With resignation of the Board
President, a special election is needed. After hearing and closing nominations of
officers to fill the unexpired terms, the Board may take an action such as “to elect
[xx] as President and [xx] as Secretary of the CCDDB, effective immediately and
ending when the required officer elections are held in July.” Action is requested.*

b) Review of Applications for PY2027 Funding (pages 21-26)
For information only, the packet includes a briefing memorandum on the process
for reviewing funding requests, with a checklist for (optional) use by Board
members. A list of applications is also attached.

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557
https://champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/pdfs/ddbmeetsched2026.pdf
https://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/pdfs/mhbmeetsched.pdf
https://champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/pdfs/mhbmeetsched2026.pdf
https://ccmhddbrds.org/
https://ccmhddbrds.org/
https://ccmhddbrds.org/
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/DDB%20Glossary%202024.pdf


XIII. Old Business
a) Agency Special Request (pages 27-32)*

A Decision Memorandum offers an update on CU Autism Network as background 
for their request for extension of financial review deadline. Action is requested.*

b) Emerging Threats
The Board may discuss threats to the safety and stability of people with I/DD and 
other vulnerable residents.

c) Input from People with I/DD
People with I/DD may choose to offer input to the Board and public at this time.

d) Engage Illinois
An oral update will be provided.

e) Evaluation Capacity Building Project Update
An oral update will be provided. See resources developed by the team
at https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos.

f) disAbility Resource Expo and AIR Updates
An oral update will be provided. See also https://disabilityresourceexpo.org and 
https://champaigncountyair.com/

g) PY2026 Second Quarter I/DD Program Activity Reports (pages 33-60)
For information, service activity reports from funded I/DD programs are included.

h) PY2026 Second Quarter I/DD Claims Reports (pages 61-76)
For information are summaries of service claims from many I/DD programs.

i) (Optional) Comparison of PY2025 Agency Revenues
On pages 53-84 of the Board meeting packet linked here
(https://champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2026/260128_Meeting/ 
260128_Full_Board_Packet.pdf) is a report the CCDDB may discuss.

XIV. Successes and Other Agency Information
The Chair reserves the authority to limit individual agency representative participation 
to 5 minutes and/or total time to 20 minutes. See below for details.**

XV. County Board Input
XVI. Champaign County Mental Health Board Input
XVII. Board Announcements and Input
XVIII. Adjournment

* Board action is requested.
**Public input may be given virtually or in person. If the meeting is not convenient, you may communicate with the

Board by emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or kim@ccmhb.org any comments for us to read aloud during the 
meeting. The Chair reserves the right to limit individual time to five minutes and total time to twenty minutes. All 
feedback is welcome. The Board does not respond directly but may use input to inform future actions. Agency 
representatives and others providing input which might impact Board actions should be aware of the Illinois 
Lobbyist Registration Act, 25 ILCS 170/1, and take appropriate steps to be in compliance with the Act.  

For accessible documents or assistance with any portion of this packet, please contact us (kim@ccmhb.org). 

2

https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos
https://disabilityresourceexpo.org/
https://champaigncountyair.com/
https://champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2026/260128_Meeting/260128_Full_Board_Packet.pdf
https://champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2026/260128_Meeting/260128_Full_Board_Packet.pdf
https://champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2026/260128_Meeting/260128_Full_Board_Packet.pdf
javascript:void(0);
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/Commission/jcar/admincode/JCARTitlePart.asp?Title=002&Part=0560
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org


1 | P a g e  
 

 _____________________________________________________________________________ 

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY BOARD FOR CARE AND TREATMENT 
OF PERSONS WITH A DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY 

(CCDDB) MEETING 
 

Minutes January 28, 2026 

This meeting was held at the Scott Bennett Administrative Center 
102 E. Main St., Urbana, IL  61802 
 and with remote access via Zoom. 

 
9:00 a.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Kim Fisher, Dianne Husby-Gordon, Susan Fowler, Neil Sharma 
 
MEMBERS EXCUSED: Anne Robin 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Kim Bowdry, Leon Bryson, Lynn Canfield, Stephanie Howard-

Gallo, Shandra Summerville, Chris Wilson 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Danielle Matthews, Kelli Martin, AJ Zwettler, Heather Levingston, 

Sarah Perry, Laura Bennett, Jami Olsen, DSC; Hannah Sheets, 
Becca Obuchowski, Community Choices; Paula Vanier, Mel Liong, 
Eric Enger, Michelle Ingram, PACE; Jacinda Dariotis, Family 
Resiliency Center UIUC; Angela Yost, Jessica Heckenmueller, Lisa 
Benson, CCRPC; Brenda Eakins, GROW in Illinois; Annie Bruno, 
ARC of Illinois; Jenny Lokshin, Champaign County Board; Lezlie 
McCoy, Terri Bristow, PSCI 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Dr. Fowler called the meeting to order at 9:08 a.m.  CCDDB member Dr. Kim Fisher requested 
to attend remotely due to employment obligations. In compliance with the CCDDB By-Laws a 
motion was requested by Dr. Fowler to allow her remote attendance. 
 

MOTION:   Dr. Sharma moved to allow remote attendance for Dr. 
Kim Fisher for this meeting due to employment obligations, as 
allowed in the CCDDB By-Laws.  Ms. Gordon seconded the motion. 
All CCDDB members voted aye and the motion passed. 

 
 
 

3



2 | P a g e  
 

ROLL CALL: 
 
Roll call was taken, and a quorum was present. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
An agenda was approved. 
 
CCDDB and CCMHB SCHEDULES/TIMELINES: 
 
Draft CCDDB and CCMHB meeting schedules and CCDDB allocation timeline were included in 
the packet and are posted online and linked in the agenda. 
 

MOTION:  Dr Fisher moved to accept the CCDDB schedule as 
submitted.  Dr. Sharma seconded.  A voice vote was taken and the 
motion passed. 

 
ACRONYMS and GLOSSARY: 
 
A list of commonly used acronyms was posted publicly and linked in the agenda. 
 
CITIZEN INPUT/PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
None. 
 
CHAIR’S COMMENTS: 
 
Dr. Fowler thanked staff for the pie charts for the Comparison of PY2025 Agency Revenues. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS: 
 
Director Canfield reviewed the status of agency audits. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
Minutes from the 11/19/25 meeting were included in the packet.  
 

MOTION: Dr. Sharma moved to approve the 11/19/25 board meeting 
minutes. Ms. Gordon seconded the motion.  A voice vote was taken and 
the motion passed. 

 
VENDOR INVOICE LIST: 
 
The Vendor Invoice List was included in the Board packet. An addendum was included. 
 

4



3 | P a g e  
 

MOTION: Dr. Sharma moved to approve the Vendor Invoice List as 
presented. Ms. Gordon seconded the motion.  A voice vote was taken 
and the motion passed unanimously. 

 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Staff reports were included in the packet for review. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Special Election: 
Deferred to the next scheduled meeting. 
 
Agency Special Request: 
A request from PACE, Inc., that the Board waive suspension of payments due to late PY25 audit 
and authorize CCDDB staff to release payments as scheduled, was included in the Board packet. 
 

MOTION:  Dr. Fisher moved to waive suspension of payments due to 
late PY25 audit and authorize CCDDB staff to release payments for 
January, February, and March.  Dr. Sharma seconded the motion.  A 
roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
Expo Activities for 2026: 
A Decision Memorandum presented an update. Director Canfield reviewed the challenges of 
having an Expo this year because of various issues including the recent resignation of the Expo 
coordinators. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Sharma moved to direct CCDDB-CCMHB staff to 
form an Advisory Committee to plan and carry out Disability 
Resource Expo activities, which may include an in-person event and 
to authorize the Executive Director to pay for related services and 
products using approved budgeted funds. Dr. Fisher seconded the 
motion. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
AIR Activities for 2026: 
A Decision Memorandum presented an update. Ebertfest organizers have a final 2-day festival 
planned for April 2026. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Fowler moved to approve up to $6,322.50 to share the 
cost of anti-stigma film sponsorship in Roger Ebert’s Film Festival 
2026 and to authorize the Executive Director and staff to issue 
payment. Dr. Sharma seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken 
and the motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

5



4 | P a g e  
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
Resolution #1 Update: 
An adaptation of the Resolution adopted by the CCDDB was included in the Board packet, with 
DRAFT actions for a multi-governmental pledge.  
 

MOTION: Dr. Fisher moved to accept the 2026 pledge to residents 
with disabilities as presented. Dr. Sharma seconded the motion. A 
voice vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
Agency Special Request Update: 
A Briefing Memorandum with an update on financial reporting by CU Autism Network was 
included in the Board packet.  Although CUAN was working toward completing a financial 
review, their CPA firm has recently sent a letter of disengagement which was included in the 
Board packet.  Ms. Canfield provided a brief recap, Board members discussed the 2024 
contracts. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Fisher moved to request an agency representative join 
Steven Beckett at the February meeting for a 15 minute time limit to 
discuss their request and answer Board questions. Dr. Sharma 
seconded the motion. A voice vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
Emerging Threats: 
For information were articles published by Disability Scoop, regarding new requirements of 
Medicaid and plans to reorganize the US Dept of Ed.  
 
Input from People with I/DD: 
None. 
 
Engage Illinois 
An oral update was provided. 
 
Evaluation Capacity Building Project Update: 
An oral update was provided by Jacinda Dariotis from UIUC.  See resources developed by the 
team at https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos. 
 
disAbility Resource Expo Update: 
See New Business (above.) See also https://disabilityresourceexpo.org 
 
Comparison of PY2025 Agency Revenues: 
For information was a report showing sources of all revenue on which agencies also funded by 
the CCDDB and Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB) rely. 
 
 
 
 
 

6

https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos
https://disabilityresourceexpo.org/


5 | P a g e

SUCCESSES AND AGENCY INFORMATION: 

Success and agency information was provided by Becca Obuchowski from Community Choices; 
Angela Yost from RPC; AJ Zwettler from DSC; Annie Bruno from Arc of Illinois; and Paula 
Vanier from PACE. 

COUNTY BOARD INPUT: 

Ms. Lokshin commented on the importance of financial accountability and that the County is 
facing a difficult budget planning season. 

CCMHB INPUT: 

The CCMHB met last week with similar agenda items. 

BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS AND INPUT: 

None. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

The meeting adjourned at 10:40 a.m. 

Respectfully Submitted by: Stephanie Howard-Gallo 
         CCMHB/CCDDB Compliance and Operations Coordinator 

*Minutes are in draft form and subject to approval by the CCDDB.

7



(This page is intentionally left blank.)

8



VE
N

D
O

R 
IN

VO
IC

E 
LI

ST

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

, I
L 

  F
U

N
D 

= 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

ta
l D

is
ab

ili
tie

s B
oa

rd
  M

O
N

TH
 =

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
26

Ve
nd

or
 

N
um

be
r

Ve
nd

or
 N

am
e

In
vo

ic
e

In
vo

ic
e 

Da
te

Ch
ec

k 
Ru

n
In

vo
ic

e 
N

et
In

vo
ic

e 
De

sc
rip

tio
n

1
CH

AM
PA

IG
N

 C
O

U
N

TY
 T

RE
AS

U
RE

R
Ja

n'
26

 D
D2

6-
07

8
1/

1/
20

26
01

09
26

A
35

,4
20

.0
0

$ 
 

DD
26

-0
78

 D
ec

isi
on

 S
up

po
rt

 P
CP

10
17

0
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

TA
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 C
EN

TE
RJ

an
'2

6 
DD

26
-0

84
1/

1/
20

26
01

09
26

A
21

,9
16

.0
0

$ 
 

DD
26

-0
84

 C
lin

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s

10
17

0
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

TA
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 C
EN

TE
RJ

an
'2

6 
DD

26
-0

91
1/

1/
20

26
01

09
26

A
43

,5
83

.0
0

$ 
 

DD
26

-0
91

 C
om

m
un

ity
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

10
17

0
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

TA
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 C
EN

TE
RJ

an
'2

6 
DD

26
-0

81
1/

1/
20

26
01

09
26

A
52

,3
33

.0
0

$ 
 

DD
26

-0
81

 C
om

m
un

ity
 L

iv
in

g

10
17

0
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

TA
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 C
EN

TE
RJ

an
'2

6 
DD

26
-0

92
1/

1/
20

26
01

09
26

A
10

,1
66

.0
0

$ 
 

DD
26

-0
92

 C
on

ne
ct

io
ns

10
17

0
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

TA
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 C
EN

TE
RJ

an
'2

6 
DD

26
-0

85
1/

1/
20

26
01

09
26

A
8,

54
1.

00
$ 

   
DD

26
-0

85
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t F

irs
t

10
17

0
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

TA
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 C
EN

TE
RJ

an
'2

6 
DD

26
-0

80
1/

1/
20

26
01

09
26

A
26

,6
66

.0
0

$ 
 

DD
26

-0
80

 In
di

vi
du

al
 a

nd
 F

am
ily

10
17

0
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

TA
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 C
EN

TE
RJ

an
'2

6 
DD

26
-0

83
1/

1/
20

26
01

09
26

A
41

,6
66

.0
0

$ 
 

DD
26

-0
83

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n

10
17

0
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

TA
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 C
EN

TE
RJ

an
'2

6 
DD

25
-0

86
1/

1/
20

26
01

09
26

A
20

,3
33

.0
0

$ 
 

DD
25

-0
86

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

9



VE
N

D
O

R 
IN

VO
IC

E 
LI

ST

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

, I
L 

  F
U

N
D 

= 
ID

D 
Sp

ec
ia

l I
ni

tia
tiv

es
  M

O
N

TH
 =

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
26

Ve
nd

or
 

N
um

be
r

Ve
nd

or
 N

am
e

In
vo

ic
e

In
vo

ic
e 

Da
te

Ch
ec

k 
Ru

n
In

vo
ic

e 
N

et
In

vo
ic

e 
De

sc
rip

tio
n

1
CH

AM
PA

IG
N

 C
O

U
N

TY
 T

RE
AS

U
RE

R
Ja

n'
26

 ID
DS

I2
5-

08
9

1/
1/

20
26

01
09

26
A

$1
9,

33
6

ID
DS

I2
5-

08
9 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 L

ife
 S

ho
rt

 
Te

rm
 A

ss
ist

an
ce

10



Kim Bowdry, 
Associate Director for Intellectual & Developmental Disabilities 
Staff Report – February 2026 

CCDDB/CCMHB/IDDSI: PY2026 2nd Quarter Reports were due on January 28, 2026. Ahead of 
the deadline, I provided support for claims uploads in the Online Reporting System to CCDDB 
funded agency staff.  

PY2026 2nd Quarter Claims Reports for CCDDB and CCMHB I/DD Funded Programs 
(included in the February CCDDB packet) were created using the data entered in the system 
by agency staff. I am reviewing and documenting the information provided in the 2nd Quarter 
reports. This information was added to the CCDDB and CCMHB I/DD funded program 
Performance Data Charts. I created a more accessible version of the PY2026 2nd Quarter 
Program Service Reports for I/DD programs funded by the Champaign County Developmental 
Disabilities Board and Champaign County Mental Health Board; this can be found in the 
February CCDDB packet. 

The deadline for PY2027 application submission was February 2, 2026, at 4:30 PM CST. 
CCDDB and CCMHB requests for I/DD funding can be found in the February CCDDB Meeting 
packet. 

I have started working on Program Summaries for I/DD funding requests to the Champaign 
County Developmental Disabilities Board and Champaign County Mental Health Board. 
Program Summaries will be included in the April 2026 Board packet. 

I participated in monthly meetings with CCDDB/CCMHB staff and staff from the Family 
Resiliency Center related to the Evaluation Capacity project.  

All consultant contracts for FY2026 have been fully completed.  

I added captions to the January CCDDB Meeting and the CCMHB Meeting and Study Session 
Zoom recordings. I posted all three recordings to the CCDDB/CCMHB YouTube Channel. 
Please visit the CCDDB/CCMHB YouTube Channel to view the recordings 
(http://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb).  

During January 2026, I created a CCDDB/CCMHB Newsletter. Unfortunately, I encountered 
an issue with the domain name which requires support from IT. This issue is still being 
resolved. 

Illinois Department of Human Services - Division of Developmental Disabilities IDHS-
DDD: I participated in The Arc of Illinois Listening Session at Champaign Public Library. This 
event was co-hosted by the CCDDB. This event consisted of a conversation about I/DD 
service options in Illinois, as well as a survey related to I/DD services. The information 
gathered at this event and others throughout the state will be compiled by the University of 

11

http://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb)
http://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb


Illinois – Chicago and will be shared with IDHS-DDD. The Arc of Illinois is hosting other 
Listening Sessions throughout the state. If you are interested in participating in a Listening 
Session, please contact Annie Bruno (annie@thearcofil.org) or visit The Arc of Illinois’ website 
(https://www.thearcofil.org/events/category/arc-events/) for more information. 

Contract Amendments: N/A 

Learning Opportunities: Tim Offenstein, Falling Leaf Productions presented “Accessibility 
Training: Creating Accessible WORD and PDF Documents” on January 29, 2026, at 10AM. The 
training recording (https://youtu.be/U4XZupfQdD8) has been posted to the CCDDB/CCMHB 
YouTube channel (https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb). 

On February 26, 2026, Mr. Offenstein will present “Accessibility Training: Building Accessible 
Websites.” This training is also scheduled to begin at 10AM. Interested participants can sign-
up here (https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/WSdic_WaRkCvTj8EY0IITg). 

CCDDB and CCMHB will be partnering with UIUC School of Social Work and The University of 
Illinois Leadership Center (ILC) to offer a series of leadership training courses. The United 
Way and Community Foundation of East Central Illinois are also partnering on this project. 
The first training course is being planned for March 25, 2026, from 9:30-10:30 AM at the 
United Way of Champaign County (time and location have been updated). Further details are 
coming soon. 

DISABILITY Resource Expo: I participated in an Advisory Committee Meeting for the 
Disability Resource Expo. I created a Doodle Poll for the next meeting of the Advisory 
Committee. 

Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Agencies Council (MHDDAC): Cindy 
Crawford, Community Services Center of Northern Champaign County (CSCNCC) provided a 
presentation on the programs and services offered through the CSCNCC during the January 
meeting. 

Association of Community Mental Health Authorities of Illinois (ACMHAI): I participated in 
the February Executive Committee meeting.  

National Association for County Behavioral Health and Developmental Disability 
Directors (NACBHDD): N/A 

Human Services Council (HSC): The February meeting was postponed. 

Champaign County Transition Planning Committee (TPC): The next meeting of the TPC is 
scheduled for March 5, 2026. 

Champaign County Local Inter-Agency Council (LIC): N/A 

Other: I also participated in several webinars. 

12

mailto:annie@thearcofil.org
mailto:annie@thearcofil.org
https://www.thearcofil.org/events/category/arc-events/
https://www.thearcofil.org/events/category/arc-events/
https://youtu.be/U4XZupfQdD8
https://youtu.be/U4XZupfQdD8
https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb
https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb
https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/WSdic_WaRkCvTj8EY0IITg
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/WSdic_WaRkCvTj8EY0IITg
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/WSdic_WaRkCvTj8EY0IITg
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/WSdic_WaRkCvTj8EY0IITg


Leon Bryson 
Associate Director for Mental Health & Substance Use Disorders 
Staff Report-February 2026 
 

CCMHB/CCDDB PY27 Funding: On December 19, 2025, the online PY27 funding 
application portal was open for agencies to submit applications for funding requests. 
CCMHB/CCDDB staff were available to provide limited technical support at the request of the 
agency. The deadline for submission of funding applications was February 2, 2026. Courage 
Connection missed the deadline to reapply for funding and submitted a Request for Board 
Approval Exception form. This request is included in the CCMHB packet for board members’ 
discussion. 

Agency Progress Reports: Agency PY26 Second Quarter Program Service Activity and CLC 
progress reports were due on January 28, 2026. Ms. Stephanie Howard-Gallo sent a reminder to 
agencies regarding the second quarter reporting deadline and the process for requesting 
extensions. The Refugee Center and Cunningham Children’s Home requested deadline 
extensions to submit late reports. Ms. Stephanie Howard-Gallo issued a suspension letter to the 
Don Moyer Boys and Girls Club for failure to submit a CLC report. At this time, all required 
reports have been received. 

Site Visits: Site visits were conducted with Champaign Christian Health Center and GROW at 
their main offices, with the assistance of Ms. Shandra Summerville. No notable concerns were 
identified regarding either agency’s program services. Upcoming site visits are scheduled with 
the Community Service Center of Northern Champaign County, WIN Recovery, Immigrant 
Services, and the Child Advocacy Center. Each site visit includes a discussion with the Program 
Director and relevant personnel regarding program effectiveness, as well as a review of client 
records and service utilization data. Upon request, all necessary supporting documentation was 
provided by the program directors and their staff. 

Mid-Year Progress Reports: The next set of mid-year presentations for the March 25 Study 
Session will feature Urbana Neighborhood Connections Center, Immigrant Services, and 
Rosecrance. Rosecrance will provide board members with an update on the latest developments 
related to their CCBHC. 

ACMHAI Committee: I attended the I/DD Committee and Legislative Committee meetings. I 
also participated in the following ACMHAI webinars: Making Digital Mental Health Work in 
the Real World and SNAP Updates. 

CCMHDDAC Meeting: The January 27th meeting was relatively short in duration with 
members providing updates and a presentation from Executive Director Cindy Crawford from 
Community Service Center of Northern Champaign County. At the next meeting on February 
24th members will hear a presentation from Katie Harmon from CCRPC. 

CIT Steering Committee: At the February 4th meeting members provided updates. Another 
relatively short meeting. 

13



Continuum of Service Providers to the Homeless (CSPH): On February 3rd, members 
gathered at the Martens Center to receive updates on homelessness response efforts. Danielle 
Chynoweth and Katie Harmon shared next steps related to Homebase, a mission-driven nonprofit 
focused on eliminating homelessness, alleviating poverty, and building strong communities. 
Planned activities include forming a 15-member in-person steering committee, hosting an on-site 
focus group in March, reviewing key policy documents, and analyzing the past 10 years of Point-
in-Time (PIT) data. The work will focus on four priority areas: CSPH structural components, 
street outreach, the federal NOFO, and relationship building. Katie Harmon also provided an 
update on the recent Point-in-Time count. Approximately 40 volunteers participated, and an 
estimated 35–40 unsheltered individuals were surveyed. The count was considered successful, 
with care packages distributed and transportation to shelters provided by Cunningham Township. 
A follow-up comprehensive inventory count will be released soon. Danielle Chynoweth shared 
updates on the re-visioning of Strides Shelter, noting that intake will now occur on Wednesdays. 
While the shelter continues to face staffing reductions, improvements include a new floor 
installation and receipt of a $10,000 donation. Fundraising efforts are ongoing. Currently, a total 
of 120 beds are in use across Cunningham Township and Strides. 

Evaluation Capacity Committee Team: I attend and participate in the monthly meetings with 
the Evaluation Capacity project staff. The next meeting is scheduled for February 13th. 

Rantoul Service Provider’s Meeting: At the January 26th meeting members provided updates. 

SOFTT/LANS Meeting: At the January 21st meeting, members heard from Courage Connection 
Executive Director Matthew Fletcher, who provided an engaging overview of the services 
offered by his agency. Members also received an overview of Family Advocacy in Champaign 
County’s advocacy and outreach services. Lastly, members are moving forward with planning 
Fatherhood Part 2 forum. The next scheduled meeting will take place on February 18th at 1:30pm 
via Microsoft Teams. 

Other Activities:   

• On January 29, I attended Accessibility Training: Creating Accessible Word and PDF 
Documents, presented by Tim Offenstein of Falling Leaf Productions. The training 
provided one hour of instruction focused on best practices for creating accessible 
documents. 

• Director Canfield, Associate Director Bowdry, and I have spent the past several weeks 
working to update Word and PDF documents to meet accessibility standards. 

14



Stephanie Howard-Gallo 

Operations and Compliance Coordinator Staff Report –  

February 2026 Board Meeting 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY: 

2nd Quarter Reporting 2026: 
2nd quarter financial and program reporting were due January 28th at 
11:59 p.m. I sent the funded agencies a reminder of the deadline, along 
with the form to submit if they need an extension.  

ECIRMAC requested an extension.  Cunningham Children’s Home 
requested an extension after the due date.  Don Moyer Boys and Girls 
Club had their payment paused because they did not request an 
extension and their CLC Plan update was not submitted. 

Funding Applications: 
I am beginning to review eligibility questionnaires. 

Audits: 
Completed audits are sent to a consultant (John Brusveen) for review.  I 
provide the consultant with all financial reports for funded programs from 
FY2025.  

Trainings: 
I attended Accessibility Training for WORD and PDF documents. 

Community Awareness/Anti-Stigma Efforts/Alliance for Inclusion 
and Respect (AIR):  
I am planning for the usual art show/sale at the final Ebertfest in April 
2026.  The Crow at 110 has invited AIR artists to participate in their art 
show in the spring. 

Other: 
• Prepared meeting materials for CCMHB/CCDDB regular

meetings and study sessions/presentations.
• Attended meetings for the CCMHB/CCDDB.
• Wrote minutes for the CCMHB/CCDDB meetings.

15



(This page is intentionally left blank.)

16



 

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY BOARD FOR CARE AND TREATMENT OF PERSONS WITH 
A DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY d/b/a 

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES BOARD (CCDDB) 
BY-LAWS 

 
 Adopted by the CCDDB 1/4/05.  Amended 12/5/06 and 7/23/14 and 6/23/2021 and 1/22/2025.   

  
I.   PURPOSE AND FUNCTIONS: 
 

A. The Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) is established 
under the Illinois Community Care for Persons With Developmental Disabilities 
Act (IL Compiled Statutes, Chapter 50, Sections 835/0.01 to 835/14 inclusive)  in 
order to  “provide facilities or services for the benefit of its residents who are 
persons with intellectual or developmental disabilities and who are not eligible to 
participate in any such program conducted under Article 14 of the School Code, or 
may contract therefor with any privately or publicly operated entity which provides 
facilities or services either in or out of such governmental unit.” 

 
B. In order to accomplish these purposes, the CCDDB performs the following 

functions: 
 

1. Planning for the intellectual and developmental disabilities services system 
to assure accomplishment of the CCDDB goals. 

 
2. Allocation of local funds to assure the provision of a comprehensive system 

of community based intellectual and developmental disabilities services. 
 

3. Coordination of affiliated providers of services for individuals with 
intellectual and/or developmental disabilities to assure an inter-related 
accessible system of care. 

 
4. Evaluation of the system of care to assure that services are provided as 

planned and that services are effective in meeting the needs and values of 
the community. 

 
C. The CCDDB shall perform those duties and responsibilities as specified in Sections 

835/0.01 to 835/14 inclusive of The Community Care for Persons with 
Developmental Disabilities Act.  
 

D. Nothing in these By-laws alters the authorities and obligations codified in state or 
federal law.   

 
II. MEMBERSHIP: 
 

A. The membership of the CCDDB shall include the maximum allowed by statute.  
 

17



 

B. The members of the CCDDB shall be appointed by the presiding officer of the 
Champaign County Board, with the advice and consent of the Champaign County 
Board and its Personnel Committee. The CCDDB may recommend nominees for 
membership. Candidates apply through the County’s publicly announced process. 

 
 

C. Members of the CCDDB shall be residents of Champaign County and, as nearly as 
possible, be representative of interested groups of the community concerned with 
developmental disabilities, as well as the general public. No member of the 
CCDDB may be a full-time or part-time employee of the Illinois Department of 
Human Services - Division of Developmental Disabilities (DHS/DDD) or a Board 
member or employee of any facility or service operating under contract to the 
CCDDB. The term of office for each member shall be three (3) years. All terms 
shall be measured from the first day of July within the calendar year of appointment. 
Vacancies shall be filled for an expired term in the same manner as original 
appointments. 

 
D. Any member of the CCDDB may be removed by the appointing officer.  
 

 
III. MEETINGS: 
 

A. The CCDDB shall meet, at a minimum, annually in July. The CCDDB may meet 
each month as necessary at such time and location as the CCDDB shall designate. 
Per the Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1 et seq.), a change in the regular meeting 
dates is to be properly posted for the public a minimum of 10 days prior to the 
meeting. 

 
B. The CCDDB may meet in Study Session during the intervals between monthly 

meetings to receive reports, discuss issues, and develop recommendations on 
matters brought to it by the Executive Director and the President. 

 
C. Special meetings may be called by the President or upon the written request by any 

member to conduct such business that cannot be delayed until a regular meeting 
date. The purpose of the meeting may be to address matters brought by the 
Executive Director or any member of the CCDDB. 

 
D. The Executive Director shall prepare an agenda for all meetings of the CCDDB and 

shall cause the notice of the meeting and the agenda to be sent to all members at 
least five (5) days in advance of the meeting - except in the case of 
special/emergency meetings wherein forty-eight (48) hours’ notice shall suffice. 

 
E. Public notices and the conduct of all meetings shall be in conformance with the 

Illinois Open Meetings Act. Notice/agenda for each meeting shall be posted on the 
Champaign County website and in the physical location of the meeting and shall be 

18



 

continuously available for public review during the 48-hour period preceding the 
meeting. 

 
F. The presence of a majority of members shall constitute a quorum for any meeting 

of the CCDDB. For a member to attend a meeting by other means than physical 
presence (e.g. by video or audio conference), a majority of members must be 
physically present at the properly-noticed meeting, and a majority of physically 
present members must agree to allow the electronic attendance. Such attendance 
may only be due to: personal illness or disability; employment purposes or CCDDB 
business; unexpected childcare obligations; or a family or other emergency. A 
member wishing to attend a meeting by other means must notify the Board before 
the meeting unless advance notice is impractical. Provisions for a quorum of 
members to attend the meeting by other means, due to a declared disaster, are set 
forth in the Illinois Open Meetings Act. These By-laws affirm the Developmental 
Disabilities Board’s intent to exercise flexibilities as the law allows. 

 
 
IV. OFFICERS: 
 

A. The officers of the CCDDB shall be a President and a Secretary. 
 

B. Election of the officers shall take place at the July meeting of the CCDDB. 
 

C. Officers shall be elected for one year, with term beginning upon election and ending 
no later than August 1 of the following year. No member shall hold the same office 
for more than three (3) consecutive years, except that officers may remain in their 
then current positions until their successors can be chosen. 

 
D. Duties of Officers: 

 
1. President: 

 
Subject to the control and direction of the CCDDB, the President shall 
maintain a current general overview of the affairs and business of the 
CCDDB. The President shall have the privilege of voting in all actions by 
the CCDDB. 

 
2. Secretary: 

 
The Secretary shall act in place of the President in the latter’s absence.  The 
Secretary shall attest to the accuracy of the minutes of the CCDDB 
meetings. 

   
3. The President, Secretary, or a member as designated by the President shall 

have the authority to sign all legal documents approved by the CCDDB. 
 

19



 

4.  The President may make, with the advice and consent of the CCDDB, 
temporary appointments of interested citizens to assist the Board in 
fulfilling designated responsibilities or to perform certain functions or tasks. 

 
V. STAFF: 
 

The CCDDB shall engage the services of an Executive Director who, subject to the control 
and direction of the Board, shall have general charge, oversight, and directions of the affairs 
and business of the CCDDB and shall be its responsible managing head.  The Executive 
Director shall have the responsibility for the employment and discharge of staff pursuant 
to the provisions of applicable personnel policies. The Executive Director shall have the 
authority to sign on behalf of the CCDDB all necessary papers pursuant to CCDDB action 
and shall have the authority with the endorsement of the President to make contracts and 
expenditures within the approved program and budget. The Executive Director or delegate 
shall attend all meetings of CCDDB. The Executive Director shall also be liaison between 
the CCDDB, staff, and affiliated agencies and implement policies regarding 
communications between them. 

 
VI. FISCAL AND GRANT YEARS: 
 

A. The fiscal year of the CCDDB shall be the same as that of the County of 
Champaign, i.e., January 1 through December 31. 

 
B. CCDDB contracts for Intellectual and Developmental Disability programs and 

facilities shall be for the same fiscal year as the State of Illinois, i.e., July 1 through 
June 30. 

 
VII. RULES OF ORDER: 
 

“Roberts’ Rules of Order” shall be followed in deliberations of the Board unless otherwise 
precluded by these By-laws. 
 

VIII. CHANGE OF BY-LAWS: 
 

Any or all of these By-laws may be altered, amended or repealed by a majority vote of the 
Board at any regular or special meeting, provided that written notice of the proposed action 
is given in the call to the meeting and that a quorum is present. 

20



 
 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  February 25, 2026 
TO:  Members, Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board  
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director 
SUBJECT: Application Review Process 
 
 
Background: 
 
With agency requests for Program Year 2027 (PY27) funding submitted 
on or before February 2, 2026, the review process begins. A list of 
applications, by agency and program, is attached to this memorandum. 
This includes applications for I/DD services which may be funded by the 
Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB). The CCDDB will 
review all I/DD requests and coordinate funding recommendations with 
the CCMHB later in the spring.  
 
Board members and staff are able to view the full submitted applications 
online at http://ccmhddbrds.org using their unique login credentials and 
with or without assistance from the site’s developer. Printed copies of 
applications are available upon request. Staff reviews will result in a 
draft “program summary” for each application. These will be presented 
at the Board’s April meeting. While Board discussion of applications is 
traditionally supported by these staff reviews, the Board may begin 
discussions with applicants, especially on high level questions, earlier. 
The timeline below, from our ‘allocation process’ document, describes 
the practice used in prior years. If a different approach is preferred or 
additional board meetings held, adjustments can be made.  
 
Board questions or concerns may be directed to CCDDB staff prior to 
meetings or posed during Board meetings. Staff review of funding 
requests and preparation of opinions are improved by Board input, 

21

http://ccmhddbrds.org/


including on process expectations, quality of requests, and any additional 
information applicants might provide in response to a Board request. 
 
 
From the Allocation Process Timeline: 

 
• March 25 is a regular board meeting during which Board members 

might have questions for applicants about PY27 funding requests. 
Agency representatives are encouraged to attend. 
If not present, questions will be forwarded to them. 
This meeting will include other business. 
 

• April 15 is the deadline for the draft staff program summaries to 
be made available to the Board and public, posted online as part of 
the packet for the upcoming meeting. 
 

• April 22 is a regular meeting of the CCDDB, with focus on review of 
agency applications, supported by draft staff program summaries. 
Agency representatives are strongly encouraged to attend. 
This meeting will include other business. 
 

• April 29 is a tentative meeting, which the Board might use to 
continue reviews or other business not completed on April 16. 
 

• May 20 is the staff deadline for completing a decision 
memorandum to the Board about allocations for PY27. 
This memorandum will be included in the board packet for the 
following week’s meeting, which will be posted publicly online and 
mailed to Board members. 
 

• May 27 is a regular meeting of the CCDDB, at which the goal is to 
finalize decisions about allocation of funding for PY27. 
This meeting will include other business. 
If an additional meeting is required for the Board to reach final 
allocation decisions, it will be ideal if held a week later. 

 

22



• Following final Board decisions, CCDDB staff will begin contract 
negotiations in early June to allow time for contract preparation, 
completion of revisions by agency staff, and full execution, so that 
July payments may be released in a timely fashion. 
 

 
Expectations and Considerations for the Process: 
 
Throughout the review and decision process, staff are available to talk with 
Board members. These conversations are helpful to our review and 
eventual allocation decision scenarios. The timeline above is intended to 
support the Board’s mission of allocating funds for the benefit of the 
community and may be modified to allow more or less time to phases of 
the process. 
 
• A template checklist for (optional) Board use is attached. 

 
• When staff program summaries are presented, Board members 

may have questions for CCDDB staff or applicants, to be answered 
as time allows during the meeting. 

 
• Agency representatives should attend March and April meetings 

during which their applications are likely to be reviewed. 
 
• Board members may have questions which relate directly to an 

application or are outside the application’s scope, because their 
decision process includes understanding the larger service system 
and determining best value for residents of Champaign County. 

 
• Board questions may be raised at any time, prior to staff reviews, 

during a meeting, or afterward. 
Staff will forward questions to the applicant, and the applicant’s 
written response should relate directly to the question(s). 
Responses will be shared with all Board members and in a publicly 
posted board packet, for transparency of the process. 
 

23



• April 29 is the ideal final date for Board members to pose such 
questions to agencies. 

• May 8 is the ideal final date for applicants’ written responses, 
allowing Board and staff time to consider the exchanges fully. 
 

• The turnaround time between Board discussions can be very short, 
sometimes making it difficult to incorporate all concerns raised. 
If the staff allocation scenarios are not revised to match 
expectations by the time the May board meeting packet is 
published, additional board discussion or a subsequent board 
meeting may be necessary. 

 

24



C
C

D
D

B
 a

nd
 C

C
M

H
B

 I
/D

D
 F

un
di

ng
 R

eq
ue

st
s 

fo
r P

Y
20

27
 (J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
6-

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

7)
Pr

io
rit

y 
C

at
eg

or
y

Ag
en

cy
 N

am
e

Pr
og

ra
m

 N
am

e
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 

C
C

D
D

B
 

PY
26

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 
ID

D
SI

 
PY

26

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 
C

C
M

H
B

 
PY

26

Al
l F

un
d 

R
eq

ue
st

s 
fo

r 
PY

27

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
ha

ng
e 

if 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

Pr
im

ar
y 

an
d 

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
R

ev
ie

w
er

s

A
dv

oc
ac

y 
an

d 
Li

nk
ag

e
C

C
RP

C
 - 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

vc
s

D
ec

isi
on

 S
up

po
rt 

PC
P

$4
25

,0
42

$5
05

,5
65

19
%

SF
/K

F

A
dv

oc
ac

y 
an

d 
Li

nk
ag

e
D

SC
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n

$5
00

,0
00

$5
38

,5
00

8%
N

S/
A

R

H
om

e 
Li

fe
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ho

ic
es

, I
nc

.
In

cl
us

iv
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

up
po

rt
$2

33
,0

00
$2

46
,0

00
6%

K
F/

N
S

H
om

e 
Li

fe
D

SC
C

om
m

un
ity

 L
iv

in
g

$6
28

,0
00

$6
46

,0
00

3%
SF

/D
G

Pe
rs

on
al 

Li
fe

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
, I

nc
.

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Su

pp
or

t
$2

43
,0

00
$2

61
,0

00
7%

A
R/

N
S

Pe
rs

on
al 

Li
fe

D
SC

C
lin

ic
al 

Se
rv

ic
es

$2
63

,0
00

$2
64

,7
00

1%
D

G
/S

F

Pe
rs

on
al 

Li
fe

D
SC

In
di

vi
du

al 
&

 F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
$3

20
,0

00
$3

29
,0

00
3%

K
F/

D
G

Pe
rs

on
al 

Li
fe

PA
C

E
C

on
su

m
er

 C
on

tro
l i

n 
Pe

rs
on

al 
Su

pp
or

t
$4

5,
97

2
$4

5,
97

2
0%

D
G

/K
F

W
or

k 
Li

fe
Be

st
 B

ud
di

es
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l

Be
st

 B
ud

di
es

 Jo
bs

 - 
N

E
W

n/
a

$1
00

,0
00

N
E

W
A

R/
SF

W
or

k 
Li

fe
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ho

ic
es

, I
nc

.
C

us
to

m
iz

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

$2
56

,0
00

$2
67

,5
00

4%
N

S/
K

F

W
or

k 
Li

fe
D

SC
C

om
m

un
ity

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
$5

23
,0

00
$5

40
,2

00
3%

SF
/A

R

W
or

k 
Li

fe
D

SC
/C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ho

ic
es

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t F
irs

t
$1

02
,5

00
$1

06
,0

00
3%

D
G

/K
F

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ife
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ho

ic
es

, I
nc

.
Se

lf-
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
Su

pp
or

t
$2

28
,0

00
$2

39
,0

00
5%

A
R/

D
G

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ife
D

SC
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
irs

t 
$9

90
,0

00
$1

,0
35

,0
00

5%
N

S/
A

R

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ife
D

SC
C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 

$1
22

,0
00

$1
25

,5
00

3%
SF

/N
S

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ife
C

C
RP

C
C

om
m

un
ity

 L
ife

 S
ho

rt 
Te

rm
 A

ss
ist

an
ce

$2
32

,0
33

$0
n/

a
n/

a

St
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
th

e 
I/

D
D

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
St

af
f R

ec
ru

itm
en

t a
nd

 R
et

en
tio

n
$4

8,
00

0
$4

8,
00

0
n/

a
2 

yr 
- n

o r
ev

iew

St
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
th

e 
I/

D
D

 D
SC

W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 R

et
en

tio
n

$2
44

,0
00

$2
87

,3
10

18
%

K
F/

SF

Y
ou

ng
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

th
ei

rD
SC

Fa
m

ily
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

$7
02

,0
00

$7
02

,0
00

n/
a

2 
yr 

- n
o r

ev
iew

H
ea

d 
St

ar
t/

E
ar

ly
 H

ea
d 

St
ar

t
E

ar
ly

 C
hi

ld
ho

od
 M

H
 S

vs
 (M

H
 &

 D
D

)
$2

16
,8

00
$4

11
,0

62
D

D
 p

or
tio

n 
TB

D
A

R/
N

S

C
U

 E
ar

ly
C

U
 E

ar
ly

 (M
H

 &
D

D
)

$1
6,

14
5

$8
6,

70
1

D
D

 p
or

tio
n 

TB
D

N
S/

A
R

(a
mo

un
ts 

lis
ted

 a
re 

for
 D

D
 p

or
tio

n 
of 

M
H

B 
con

tra
cts

)
 -

 -
$5

,1
71

,5
14

$2
32

,0
33

$9
34

,9
45

$6
,7

85
,0

10
To

ta
l P

Y
26

 a
wa

rd
s =

 $
6,

33
8,

49
2

To
ta

l P
Y

27
 re

qu
est

s. 
M

H
B 

cou
ld 

aw
ar

d 
$9

64
,8

63
 (3

.2
%

 in
cre

as
e)

25



CCDDB Application Review Checklist 
 

Minimal responsiveness (staff confirm first):        Y/N   concerns/comments  
Eligible per questionnaire if new. 
Eligible per compliance if incumbent. 

  

Recent audit, review, compilation, or audited balance sheet if new. 
Recent audit or review with no concerns if incumbent. 

  

All application forms submitted on time.   

Relates to I/DD.   
Other pay sources have been maximized.   
Relationships with providers of similar or related services.   

DDB Priority Categories:        check appropriate  
Advocacy and Linkage         ____________ 
Home Life          ____________ 
Personal Life          ____________ 
Work Life          ____________ 
Community Life          ____________ 
Strengthening the I/DD Workforce       ____________ 
Young Children and their Families (collaboration with CCMHB)    ____________ 

Best Value Considerations:         Y/N     concerns/comments 
Is there a clear connection between the budget plan and the 
program activities? 

  

Are measurable, meaningful participant outcomes included? 
Are the access measures and utilization targets reasonable? 

  

Do the people served have a say in their own service plan? 
How are program activities impacted by people with I/DD? 

  

Does the program plan narrative add program-specific strategies 
(beyond the agency CLCP) to engage underserved populations? 

  

Does the application address whether and how rural residents 
may use the program? 

  

Is inclusion in the community described at the individual level? 
Through program activities? 

  

Does the application describe use of virtual supports and 
training? 

  

Is an evidence-based, evidence-informed, promising, or 
innovative approach identified? 

  

Are staff credentials or specialized training identified?   

Are other resources identified, with efforts to leverage them 
demonstrated? 

  

 

26



 

 
 
DECISION MEMORANDUM  
DATE:  February 25, 2026  
TO:  Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) 
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director, and 

Kim Bowdry, Associate Director 
SUBJECT:   CU Autism Network (CUAN) PY2024 Request 
 
 
Purpose: 
 
During 2025, the CCDDB deferred action on a request made by the CU 
Autism Network (CUAN) until their independent CPA financial review report 
could be shared with and reviewed by CCDDB staff. Although CUAN was 
working toward this report, their CPA firm sent a ‘letter of disengagement.’ 
This letter is attached, along with the agency’s request for additional time 
to secure a CPA firm and complete the work. 
 
 
Statutory Authority: 
 
The CCDDB is established and governed by (50 ILCS 835/) The Community 
Care for Persons with Developmental Disabilities Act. Among 
responsibilities identified for Boards established under this Act are 
compliance with the Local Government Prompt Payment Act, Civil Practice 
Law, Illinois Department of Human Services (rules), and the Illinois 
Administrative Procedure Act. This Act allows regulatory flexibility 
appropriate to small businesses and non-profit agencies. 
 
Consistent with these statutes and rules, the CCDDB sets Funding 
Requirements and Guidelines for Allocation of Funds, which include their 
authority to exercise flexibility and authorize exceptions to standards. The 
Board has often recognized the importance of peer and family support 
networks and their unique contributions to the community. Volunteer- or 

27

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=3834&ChapterID=11
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=3834&ChapterID=11
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/Articles?ActID=83&ChapAct=5%C2%A0ILCS%C2%A0100/&ChapterID=2&ChapterName=GENERAL%20PROVISIONS&ActName=Illinois%20Administrative%20Procedure%20Act.
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/Articles?ActID=83&ChapAct=5%C2%A0ILCS%C2%A0100/&ChapterID=2&ChapterName=GENERAL%20PROVISIONS&ActName=Illinois%20Administrative%20Procedure%20Act.
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/CCDDB%20Funding%20Requirements%20and%20Guidelines.pdf
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/CCDDB%20Funding%20Requirements%20and%20Guidelines.pdf


 

parent-led groups may struggle to meet all standards, and the Board 
reserves the right to vary provisions where it deems such variances to be in 
the best interest of the CCDDB and residents of Champaign County. 
 
Background: 
 
Because reports associated with CUAN’s PY24 contracts with the CCDDB for 
“Community Outreach Program” and “CCDDB CUAN Planning Seed Grant” 
had not been submitted by the deadlines, CCDDB staff notified the agency 
that all payments issued should be returned. During their November 2024 
business meeting, the CCDDB considered a request from Steve Beckett on 
behalf of CUAN for an opportunity to demonstrate that funds had been 
used appropriately, so that none should be returned. The Board approved 
this request, setting a deadline of January 8, 2025, for first and second 
quarter program and financial reports to be completed. The Board also 
agreed to amend the contracts so that obligations would end December 31, 
2023 rather than the original June 30, 2024.  
 
The agency reports were submitted on time, and a summary was provided 
at the CCDDB’s January 2025 meeting. While we could not conclude 
whether funds had been used as contracted, this summary incorporated 
details from submitted reports, expertise of other CCDDB staff, and 
information from Steve Beckett, his assistant Kristina Forrest, and the CPA 
performing the agency’s financial review. Mr. Beckett and Mrs. Julie Duvall, 
CUAN’s Executive Director, answered questions, and the Board agreed to 
the agency’s subsequent request that we accept third and fourth quarter 
program and financial reports, as these would clarify how the six months of 
payments had been used during the full original contract period of July 1, 
2023 through June 30, 2024. 
 
These additional agency reports were reviewed by CCDDB staff and 
assessed as full-year in report to the CCDDB at their July 2025 business 
meeting. Without the independent CPA financial review, our assessment 
was incomplete. The agency’s financial reports had some inconsistencies 
across programs, suggesting that during PY24, the agency had not met 
contract requirements for financial record keeping and reporting. We did 

28



 

offer the opinion that one program appeared to have been implemented as 
contracted and for the full year, while the other had not. 
 
Because we had initially requested that all payments be returned, thus 
voiding all contract expectations, including a financial review, we did not 
ask the CCDDB to approve an extended deadline for the CPA report. When 
the agency signaled that this work was in progress, the Board allowed more 
time, with the understanding that CCDDB would read the subsequent 
report and use it to form an opinion. If the CPA report is inconclusive, we 
will again be in an uncertain position. 
 
The CCDDB opted in July and September not to vote on the initial request 
or related actions until the CPA report and follow-up are completed. They 
requested a conversation with CUAN’s Board after this matter is concluded.  
 
 
Update:  
 
Without the independent CPA financial review report to confirm that all 
payments were expended within the Program Year and according to CCDDB 
requirements, the staff assessment presented in July 2025 remains 
speculative. An audit, much more costly than a financial review, would 
allow meaningful analysis of CUAN's finances and a more confident final 
opinion. The letter of disengagement from the firm suggests that the 
review cannot be completed, which would also apply to a full audit.  
 
Staff assessment, if supported by the CPA report and agreed to by the 
agency, might clarify an action for the CCDDB to take, such as approving 
use of payments issued for the CU Autism Network PY2024 “CCDDB CUAN 
Planning Seed Grant” contract, for which planned activities did not occur, 
to support the CU Autism Network PY2024 “Community Outreach 
Program” contract, for which planned activities took place and related 
expenses were incurred. CPA reports focus on financial statements but do 
not verify programmatic activities, so the program reports which had been 
shared to our staff will also form the basis for conclusions. 
 

29



 

For now, the agency has asked that the CCDDB consider allowing additional 
time for an independent CPA to be engaged and to complete the work on a 
PY2024 financial review. 
 

Suggested Actions: 
 
Motion to allow additional time as requested and to set [xx/xx/202x] as the 
deadline for completion of an independent CPA financial review report on 
CU Autism for the year July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024.  
______ Approved  
______ Denied  
______ Modified  
______ Additional Information Needed 

30



January 12, 2026 

Julie Duvall, Executive Director 
Champaign Urbana Autism Network 
P.O. Box 17024  
Urbana, IL 61803 

In accordance with the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct, this letter is being sent to 
memorialize the termination of the review services between MH CPA PLLC and Champaign 
Urbana Autism Network. MH CPA PLLC was originally engaged to perform the review of 
Champaign Urbana Autism Network as of and for the twelve-month period ended June 30, 2024. 

The reason for disengagement is a limitation in scope of the information needed to 
complete the engagement. This engagement originally began in December 2024, and as of the 
date of this letter, remains incomplete. 

This letter is to confirm that we disengaged from the review of Champaign Urbana 
Autism Network as of and for the twelve-month period ended June 30, 2024, as of January 12, 
2026. MH CPA PLLC is electing to write-off the Three Thousand Five Hundred Eighty Two 
dollars ($3,582) of unbilled time that we have incurred related to this engagement.  

We previously returned to you all original records you provided to us in connection with 
previous engagements. Our working paper files are the property of our firm, and will be 
maintained by us in accordance with our firm record retention policy. 

We will consider any requests for copies of documents in our working paper files from 
you or any successor firm. However, providing such copies is at our discretion. We may require 
payment for time spent providing these copies. 

Sincerely, 

MH CPA PLLC 

31



Special Request for Consideration by CCDDB or CCMHB 
 
Complete and direct to stephanie@ccmhb.org and either kim@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org. 
Full Board approval is needed for certain exceptions to requirements and to reverse actions taken by the 
CCDDB- CCMHB staff. The completed request form will be presented to the CCDDB or CCMHB at a meeting. 

 
Requester’s Name:   Julie Duvall   ​  
 
Date:      1/12/26 
 
Agency Name:      CU Autism Network ​ 
 
Contract(s):      DD24-087 & DD24-088 

Step One: Identify the type of special consideration requested. 
 

☐ Consideration of Late Funding Request 
☐ Release of Paused Payment(s) 
☐ Continuation of Contract(s) 
☐ Reversal of Other Compliance Action 
☐ Waiver of Other Contract Requirement 
X Other - Consideration of further time to complete financial review 

 
Step Two: Describe the circumstances necessitating this request. 
      

The certified accounting form that was hired to complete the financial review has 
disengaged from continuing the work.  

 
Step Three: Identify a solution to be implemented to avoid this circumstance in the future. 
​  

N/A 
 

Step Four: Attach documentation which will clarify the situation, including documentation 
from your CPA firm, if related to the annual audit or financial review. 

​ See attached Letter from MH CPA PLLC 

 
Step Five: Attend a meeting of the full Board, preferably in person, to answer questions. 

 

32

mailto:stephanie@ccmhb.org
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org


     PY
20

26
 2

nd
 Q

ua
rte

r P
ro

gr
am

 S
er

vic
e 

Re
po

rts
 

fo
r I

/D
D 

pr
og

ra
m

s f
un

de
d 

by
 th

e 
Ch

am
pa

ign
 C

ou
nt

y 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

ta
l D

isa
bi

lit
ie

s B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 C

ha
m

pa
ign

 C
ou

nt
y M

en
ta

l 
H

ea
lth

 B
oa

rd
 

 
 

33



C
C

RP
C

 - 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vic
es

 - 
C

om
m

un
ity

 L
ife

 S
ho

rt 
Te

rm
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
Se

co
nd

 Q
ua

rte
r 

PY
26

 P
ro

gr
am

 A
ct

ivi
ty

 R
ep

or
t 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

at
a:

 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

TP
C

s 
 

 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
3 

C
SE

s 
 

1 
SC

  
 

17
 N

TP
C

s 
 

2 
TP

C
s 

 
 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
2 

C
SE

s 
 

0 
SC

s  
 

1 
N

TP
C

s 
 

1 
TP

C
s 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

5 
C

SE
s 

 
1 

SC
  

 
18

 N
TP

C
s 

 
3 

TP
C

s 
 

 
 

 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

8 
C

SE
s 

 
25

 S
C

s 
 

88
 N

TP
C

s 
 

44
 T

PC
s 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
63

%
 

 
 

4%
 

 
 

20
%

 
 

 
7%

 
 

 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

Th
e 

C
LS

TA
 p

ro
gr

am
 re

ce
iv

ed
 tw

o 
ne

w
 re

fe
rra

ls
 in

 F
Y2

6 
Q

ua
rt

er
 2

. R
PC

 w
or

ke
d 

co
lla

bo
ra

tiv
el

y 
w

ith
 D

SC
 to

 a
ss

is
t a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 in
 o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 
su

pp
lie

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 b

eg
in

 h
er

 n
ew

 c
ar

ee
r a

s 
a 

ha
ir 

st
yl

is
t. 

RP
C

 a
ls

o 
as

si
st

ed
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 w
ith

 p
ur

ch
as

in
g 

a 
te

le
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 te
le

vi
si

on
 s

ta
nd

 
fo

r h
is

 a
pa

rt
m

en
t. 

An
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
di

vi
du

al
 a

ls
o 

su
bm

itt
ed

 a
 re

qu
es

t f
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

LS
TA

 p
ro

gr
am

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 
Sp

rin
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 &
 tr

ip
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

C
U

SR
. T

hi
s 

w
as

 a
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 th
ei

r o
rig

in
al

 fa
ll 

re
qu

es
t a

s 
th

e 
C

U
SR

 p
ro

gr
am

 g
ui

de
 c

om
es

 o
ut

 s
ea

so
na

lly
. 

RP
C

 w
as

 a
bl

e 
to

 fu
lly

 fu
nd

 a
ll 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 re
qu

es
te

d.
 T

he
 n

um
be

r o
f r

eq
ue

st
s 

w
as

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

, h
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
al

ig
ns

 w
ith

 
FY

25
 q

ua
rt

er
 2

 re
qu

es
ts

. W
e 

an
tic

ip
at

e 
a 

hi
gh

er
 vo

lu
m

e 
of

 re
qu

es
ts

 in
 th

e 
Sp

rin
g 

an
d 

ha
ve

 a
lre

ad
y 

re
ce

iv
ed

 4
 re

qu
es

ts
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

st
ar

t o
f 

Ja
nu

ar
y.

 In
 F

Y2
6 

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
, t

he
 C

LS
TA

 p
ro

gr
am

 p
ai

d 
fo

r 2
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
to

 ta
ke

 a
n 

an
ni

ve
rs

ar
y 

tr
ip

 to
 C

hi
ca

go
 (a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 re

ce
iv

ed
 in

 
Q

ua
rt

er
1)

. T
he

 c
ou

pl
e 

w
or

ke
d 

w
ith

 R
PC

's
 C

LS
TA

 s
ho

rt
-t

er
m

 C
as

e 
M

an
ag

er
 to

 p
la

n 
an

d 
pr

ep
ar

e 
fo

r t
he

ir 
tr

ip
. W

hi
le

 in
 C

hi
ca

go
, t

he
 c

ou
pl

e 
w

en
t t

o 
th

e 
Br

oo
kfi

el
d 

Zo
o 

an
d 

to
ok

 p
ar

t i
n 

th
e 

D
ol

ph
in

 D
is

co
ve

ry
. O

ne
 o

f t
he

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 b
ei

ng
 e

xc
ite

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 g

ot
 s

pl
as

he
d 

by
 th

e 
do

lp
hi

n.
 T

he
 c

ou
pl

e 
al

so
 to

ok
 a

 C
hi

ca
go

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
Bo

at
 C

ru
is

e,
 s

ho
pp

ed
 a

t t
he

 H
ar

ry
 P

ot
te

r S
to

re
, w

en
t t

o 
th

e 
C

hi
ca

go
 S

po
rt

s 
M

us
eu

m
, 

an
d 

ha
d 

di
nn

er
 a

t M
ic

ha
el

 Jo
rd

an
's

 S
te

ak
ho

us
e.

 W
hi

le
 in

 C
hi

ca
go

, t
he

 c
ou

pl
e 

w
as

 a
bl

e 
to

 s
pe

nd
 ti

m
e 

w
ith

 th
ei

r a
du

lt 
so

n 
th

at
 li

ve
s 

up
 th

er
e.

 
Th

ey
 re

po
rt

ed
 g

re
at

ly
 e

nj
oy

in
g 

th
is

 ti
m

e 
to

 c
on

ne
ct

 w
ith

 h
im

. I
nd

iv
id

ua
l 1

 re
po

rt
s 

th
at

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
LS

TA
 p

ro
gr

am
 &

 th
e 

tr
ip

s 
sh

e 
ha

s 
ta

ke
n,

 
sh

e 
ha

s 
be

co
m

e 
m

or
e 

co
nfi

de
nt

 in
 h

er
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 m
ak

e 
de

ci
si

on
s 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

. I
nd

iv
id

ua
l 2

 re
po

rt
s 

th
at

 th
at

 h
e 

ha
s 

le
ar

ne
d 

ho
w

 to
 b

et
te

r 
na

vi
ga

te
 a

ro
un

d 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 w

ith
 h

is
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

.  
 U

til
iz

at
io

n 
C

at
eg

or
y 

D
efi

ni
tio

ns
: 

C
SE

 =
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ev

en
ts

  
SC

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

r S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 C

on
ta

ct
s 

34



N
TP

C
 =

 N
on

-T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

 
 

TP
C

 =
 Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

O
th

er
, a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tra
ct

 

    
 

35



C
C

RP
C

 - 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vic
es

 –
 D

ec
is

io
n 

Su
pp

or
t P

er
so

n 
C

en
te

re
d 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r P

Y2
6 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ct

ivi
ty

 R
ep

or
t 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

at
a:

 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

TP
C

s 
 

 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
3 

C
SE

s 
 

51
 S

C
s 

 
5 

N
TP

C
s 

 
95

 T
PC

s 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
18

 C
SE

s 
 

38
 S

C
s 

 
16

 N
TP

C
s 

 
5 

TP
C

s 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

21
 C

SE
s 

 
89

 S
C

s 
 

21
 N

TP
C

s 
 

10
0 

TP
C

s 
 

 
 

 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

25
 C

SE
s 

 
10

0 
SC

s 
 

30
 N

TP
C

s 
 

12
0 

TP
C

s 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
84

%
 

 
 

89
%

 
 

 
70

%
 

 
 

83
%

 
 

 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

RP
C

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 w
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 D

SC
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ho

ic
es

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 p

er
so

n-
ce

nt
er

ed
 p

la
ns

 fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

co
un

ty
-fu

nd
ed

 
se

rv
ic

es
. I

n 
FY

26
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

, o
ur

 P
C

P 
pr

og
ra

m
 re

ce
iv

ed
 4

 n
ew

 re
fe

rra
ls

. A
ll 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 th
e 

D
is

co
ve

ry
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 e

ith
er

 
ha

ve
 th

ei
r p

er
so

na
l p

la
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
or

 th
ei

r p
la

n 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
 O

ur
 P

C
P 

C
as

e 
M

an
ag

er
s 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
be

gu
n 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

an
 o

pt
io

na
l 

on
e-

pa
ge

 p
ro

fil
e 

w
ith

 in
te

re
st

ed
 in

di
vi

du
al

s.
 T

hi
s 

pr
ofi

le
 p

ag
e 

is
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ad
de

d 
pe

rs
on

al
 to

uc
h 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
es

 th
e 

pe
rs

on
 w

ith
 a

 
on

e-
pa

ge
 s

na
ps

ho
t o

f t
he

m
se

lv
es

 th
at

 th
ey

 c
an

 e
as

ily
 s

ha
re

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s 

as
 th

ey
 c

ho
os

e.
 In

di
vi

du
al

 th
at

 h
as

 h
ad

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 e
nj

oy
ed

 c
ho

os
in

g 
ph

ot
os

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 th
ey

 w
an

te
d 

to
 s

ha
re

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s.

 T
hi

s 
pe

rs
on

 a
ls

o 
ch

os
e 

co
lo

rs
 

th
at

 h
e 

w
an

te
d 

fo
r h

is
 o

ne
-p

ag
e 

pr
ofi

le
 a

s 
w

el
l. 

RP
C

's
 Tr

an
si

tio
n 

C
on

su
lta

nt
 a

tte
nd

ed
 1

6 
IE

P'
s 

in
 F

Y2
6 

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
. R

ef
er

ra
ls

 fo
r I

EP
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 C

ha
m

pa
ig

n,
 U

rb
an

a,
 a

nd
 

Ra
nt

ou
l S

ch
oo

l D
is

tr
ic

ts
. 

RP
C

's
 D

ua
l D

ia
gn

os
is

 C
as

e 
M

an
ag

er
 h

ad
 8

 a
ct

iv
e 

cl
ie

nt
s 

in
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

. T
hi

s 
pr

og
ra

m
 h

as
 re

ce
iv

ed
 th

re
e 

ne
w

 re
fe

rra
ls

 to
 b

eg
in

 in
 Q

ua
rt

er
 3

. 
 U

til
iz

at
io

n 
C

at
eg

or
y 

D
efi

ni
tio

ns
: 

C
SE

 =
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ev

en
ts

  
SC

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

r S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 C

on
ta

ct
s 

N
TP

C
 =

 N
on

-T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

 
 

TP
C

 =
 Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

O
th

er
, a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tra
ct

 

36



C
C

RP
C

 - 
H

ea
d 

St
ar

t-E
ar

ly
 H

ea
d 

St
ar

t –
 E

ar
ly

 C
hi

ld
ho

od
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 S

vs
 S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 R

ep
or

t 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

TP
C

s 
 

 
O

th
er

  
 

 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
2 

C
SE

s 
 

28
4.

5 
SC

s 
 

77
 N

TP
C

s 
 

60
 T

PC
s 

 
1 

O
th

er
 

 
 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
2 

C
SE

s 
 

38
3.

25
 S

C
s 

 
39

 N
TP

C
s 

 
30

 T
PC

s 
 

2 
O

th
er

 
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

4 
C

SE
s 

 
66

7.
75

 S
C

s 
 

11
6 

N
TP

C
s 

 
90

 T
PC

s 
 

3 
O

th
er

 
 

 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

5 
C

SE
s 

 
30

00
 S

C
s 

 
38

0 
N

TP
C

s 
 

10
0 

TP
C

s 
 

12
 O

th
er

 
 

 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
80

%
 

 
 

22
%

 
 

 
31

%
 

 
 

90
%

 
 

 
25

%
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

N
o 

C
om

m
en

ts
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

. 
 U

til
iz

at
io

n 
C

at
eg

or
y 

D
efi

ni
tio

ns
: 

C
SE

 =
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ev

en
ts

  
SC

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

r S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 C

on
ta

ct
s 

N
TP

C
 =

 N
on

-T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

 
 

TP
C

 =
 Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

O
th

er
, a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tra
ct

 =
 P

sy
ch

o-
ed

uc
at

io
na

l w
or

ks
ho

ps
, t

ra
in

in
gs

, p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t e
ffo

rts
 w

ith
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

pa
re

nt
s 

 
 

37



C
U

 E
ar

ly
 –

 C
U

 E
ar

ly
 S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 R

ep
or

t 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

TP
C

s 
 

 
 

 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
3 

C
SE

s 
 

67
 S

C
s 

 
2 

N
TP

C
s 

 
20

 T
PC

s 
 

 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
2 

C
SE

s 
 

12
3 

SC
s 

 
0 

N
TP

C
s 

 
1 

TP
C

s 
 

 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

5 
C

SE
s 

 
19

0 
SC

s 
 

2 
N

TP
C

s 
 

21
 T

PC
s 

 
 

 
 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

4 
C

SE
s 

 
46

4 
SC

s 
 

5 
N

TP
C

s 
 

20
 T

PC
s 

 
 

 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
12

5%
  

 
41

%
 

 
 

40
%

 
 

 
10

5%
  

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

Th
e 

C
U

 E
ar

ly
 b

ili
ng

ua
l h

om
e 

vi
si

to
r e

nr
ol

le
d 

on
e 

ne
w

 fa
m

ily
 th

is
 q

ua
rt

er
. A

 c
hi

ld
 a

ge
d 

ou
t a

nd
 tr

an
si

tio
ne

d 
to

 P
re

k 
an

d 
an

ot
he

r f
am

ily
 w

as
 

ad
de

d 
to

 h
er

 c
as

el
oa

d.
 S

he
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
fu

lly
 e

nr
ol

le
d 

w
ith

 a
 w

ai
t l

is
t. 

(2
0 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 2
2 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
on

e 
pr

en
at

al
). 

 12
3 

co
nt

ac
ts

 (h
om

e 
vi

si
ts

) w
er

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 w
ith

 fa
m

ili
es

. 
 U

til
iz

at
io

n 
C

at
eg

or
y 

D
efi

ni
tio

ns
: 

C
SE

 =
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ev

en
ts

  
SC

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

r S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 C

on
ta

ct
s 

N
TP

C
 =

 N
on

-T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

 
 

TP
C

 =
 Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

O
th

er
, a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tra
ct

 
     

38



 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
 –

 C
us

to
m

ize
d 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 

Re
po

rt 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
TP

C
s 

 
 

O
th

er
  

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
4 

C
SE

s 
 

61
7 

SC
s 

 
41

 T
PC

s 
 

88
3 

O
th

er
 

 
 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
2 

C
SE

s 
 

60
6 

SC
s 

 
3 

TP
C

s 
 

93
5 

O
th

er
 

 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

6 
C

SE
s 

 
12

23
 S

C
s 

 
44

 T
PC

s 
 

18
18

 O
th

er
  

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

4 
C

SE
s 

 
20

00
 S

C
s 

 
50

 T
PC

s 
 

30
20

 O
th

er
  

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
15

0%
  

 
61

%
 

 
 

88
%

 
 

 
60

%
 

 
 

 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

2 
C

SE
s 

in
 Q

2:
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 E
xp

o 
on

 1
0/

18
 a

nd
 C

U
 P

rid
e 

Fe
st

 o
n 

10
/2

5 
# 

of
 C

la
im

s 
in

 Q
2:

 6
06

 (T
he

se
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

re
po

rt
ed

 v
ia

 th
e 

on
lin

e 
sy

st
em

.) 
# 

of
 N

TP
C

s:
 0

 
# 

of
 T

PC
s 

in
 Q

2:
 2

 n
ew

 
O

th
er

: 9
35

 D
ire

ct
 h

ou
rs

 in
 Q

2 
 U

til
iz

at
io

n 
C

at
eg

or
y 

D
efi

ni
tio

ns
: 

C
SE

 =
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ev

en
ts

  
SC

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

r S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 C

on
ta

ct
s 

N
TP

C
 =

 N
on

-T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

 
 

TP
C

 =
 Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

O
th

er
, a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tra
ct

 =
 D

ire
ct

 S
er

vi
ce

 H
ou

rs
 

 
 

39



C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
 –

 In
cl

us
ive

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

up
po

rt 
Se

co
nd

 Q
ua

rte
r P

Y2
6 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Ac

tiv
ity

 R
ep

or
t 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

at
a:

 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

TP
C

s 
 

 
O

th
er

  
 

 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
4 

C
SE

s 
 

45
8 

SC
s 

 
15

 N
TP

C
s 

 
26

 T
PC

s 
 

60
6 

O
th

er
 

 
 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
2 

C
SE

s 
 

42
3 

SC
s 

 
0 

N
TP

C
s 

 
1 

TP
C

s 
 

56
7 

O
th

er
 

 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

6 
C

SE
s 

 
88

1 
SC

s 
 

15
 N

TP
C

s 
 

27
 T

PC
s 

 
11

73
 O

th
er

  

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

4 
C

SE
s 

 
21

13
 S

C
s 

 
28

 N
TP

C
s 

 
30

 T
PC

s 
 

20
23

 O
th

er
  

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
15

0%
  

 
42

%
 

 
 

54
%

 
 

 
90

%
 

 
 

58
%

 
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

2 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

 e
ve

nt
s 

in
 Q

2:
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 E
xp

o 
on

 1
0/

18
 a

nd
 C

U
 P

rid
e 

Fe
st

 o
n 

10
/2

5 
# 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

on
ta

ct
s 

in
 Q

2:
 4

23
 (5

6 
fo

r N
TP

C
s 

an
d 

36
7 

w
er

e 
al

so
 re

po
rt

ed
 fo

r T
PC

s 
vi

a 
th

e 
on

lin
e 

sy
st

em
) 

# 
of

 n
ew

 N
TP

C
s 

in
 Q

2:
 0

 
# 

of
 n

ew
 T

PC
s 

in
 Q

2:
 1

 
O

th
er

: D
ire

ct
 H

ou
rs

 in
 Q

2:
 5

67
 (6

4 
D

ire
ct

 h
ou

rs
 fo

r P
er

so
na

l D
ev

. C
la

ss
es

 &
 W

or
ks

ho
ps

 fo
r N

TP
C

s 
& 

50
3 

to
ta

l h
ou

rs
 o

f c
la

im
s 

al
so

 re
po

rt
ed

 
vi

a 
th

e 
on

lin
e 

sy
st

em
) 

 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

 
TP

C
 =

 Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
O

th
er

, a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

on
tra

ct
 =

 D
ire

ct
 S

er
vi

ce
 H

ou
rs

 
   

40



C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
 –

 S
el

f-D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

Su
pp

or
t S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 

Re
po

rt 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

O
th

er
  

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
4 

C
SE

s 
 

11
72

 S
C

s 
 

22
0 

N
TP

C
s 

 
78

2 
O

th
er

 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
2 

C
SE

s 
 

11
78

 S
C

s 
 

28
 N

TP
C

s 
 

80
0 

O
th

er
 

 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

6 
C

SE
s 

 
23

50
 S

C
s 

 
24

8 
N

TP
C

s 
 

15
82

 O
th

er
  

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

4 
C

SE
s 

 
37

23
 S

C
s 

 
24

5 
N

TP
C

s 
 

24
21

 O
th

er
  

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
15

0%
  

 
63

%
 

 
 

10
1%

  
 

65
%

 
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

2 
C

SE
s 

in
 Q

2:
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 E
xp

o 
on

 1
0/

18
 a

nd
 C

U
 P

rid
e 

Fe
st

 o
n 

10
/2

5 
# 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

on
ta

ct
s 

in
 Q

2:
 1

17
8 

# 
of

 n
ew

 N
TP

C
s 

in
 Q

2:
 2

8 
(3

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 I/
D

D
 &

 2
8 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
ou

t I
/D

D
). 

0 
TP

C
s 

O
th

er
: 8

00
 D

ire
ct

 h
ou

rs
 in

 Q
2 

 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

 
TP

C
 =

 Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
O

th
er

, a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

on
tra

ct
 =

 D
ire

ct
 S

er
vi

ce
 H

ou
rs

 
 

 

41



C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
 –

 S
ta

ff 
Re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 R
et

en
tio

n 
Se

co
nd

 Q
ua

rte
r P

Y2
6 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Ac

tiv
ity

 R
ep

or
t 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

at
a:

 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
 

N
TP

C
s  

 
 

O
th

er
  

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
1 

C
SE

s 
 

 
18

 N
TP

C
s 

 
 

21
 O

th
er

 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
1 

C
SE

s 
 

 
1 

N
TP

C
s 

 
 

27
 O

th
er

 
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

2 
C

SE
s 

 
 

19
 N

TP
C

s 
 

 
48

 O
th

er
 

 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

3 
C

SE
s 

 
 

18
 N

TP
C

s 
 

 
13

2 
O

th
er

 
 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
67

%
 

 
 

 
10

6%
  

 
 

36
%

 
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

C
SE

s:
 1

 Jo
b 

po
st

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
Q

2 
- S

ig
n-

on
 b

on
us

 w
as

 p
ro

m
in

en
tly

 p
os

te
d 

w
ith

 jo
b 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
N

TP
C

s:
 1

7 
St

aff
 m

em
be

rs
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 fr
om

 F
Y2

5,
 2

 n
ew

 s
ta

ff 
hi

re
d 

in
 F

Y2
6 

(1
-Q

1,
 1

- Q
2,

 b
ot

h 
el

ig
ib

le
 fo

r n
ew

 h
ire

 b
on

us
 a

t e
nd

 o
f Q

2)
 

O
th

er
: 2

7 
to

ta
l B

on
us

es
 P

ai
d 

2 
N

ew
 H

ire
 B

on
us

es
 

16
 R

et
en

tio
n 

Bo
nu

se
s 

9 
Ac

kn
ow

le
dg

em
en

t B
on

us
es

 
0 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 B

on
us

es
 P

ai
d 

(3
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

st
ar

te
d 

du
rin

g 
Q

2,
 w

ill
 b

e 
pa

id
 Q

3)
 

 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

 
TP

C
 =

 Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
O

th
er

, a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

on
tra

ct
 =

 Q
ua

rte
rly

 R
et

en
tio

n 
an

d/
or

 S
ig

n-
on

 B
on

us
es

 
 

 

42



C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
 –

 Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Su

pp
or

t S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r P

Y2
6 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ct

ivi
ty

 
Re

po
rt 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

at
a:

 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

O
th

er
  

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
4 

C
SE

s 
 

15
96

 S
C

s 
 

58
 N

TP
C

s 
 

70
5 

O
th

er
 

 
 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
2 

C
SE

s 
 

17
42

 S
C

s 
 

3 
N

TP
C

s 
 

69
8.

5 
O

th
er

 
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

6 
C

SE
s 

 
33

38
 S

C
s 

 
61

 N
TP

C
s 

 
14

03
.5

 O
th

er
 

 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

4 
C

SE
s 

 
68

16
 S

C
s 

 
65

 N
TP

C
s 

 
26

40
 O

th
er

  

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
15

0%
  

 
49

%
 

 
 

94
%

 
 

 
53

%
 

 
 

 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

2 
C

SE
s 

in
 Q

2:
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 E
xp

o 
on

 1
0/

18
 a

nd
 C

U
 P

rid
e 

Fe
st

 o
n 

10
/2

5 
# 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

on
ta

ct
s 

in
 Q

2:
 1

74
7 

# 
of

 n
ew

 N
TP

C
S 

in
 Q

2:
 3

 
# 

of
 T

PC
s:

 0
 

O
th

er
: 6

98
.5

 D
ire

ct
 h

ou
rs

 in
 Q

2 
G

av
e 

83
4 

rid
es

 in
 Q

2:
 W

or
k/

Vo
lu

nt
ee

r -
 3

35
, L

ei
su

re
/E

du
ca

tio
n 

- 2
31

, F
am

ily
 - 

3,
 M

ed
ic

al
/H

ea
lth

 - 
68

, C
C

 S
oc

ia
l O

pp
s 

- 1
07

, C
C

 a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

t 
- 3

4,
 E

rra
nd

s 
– 

54
 

 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

 
TP

C
 =

 Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
O

th
er

, a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

on
tra

ct
 =

 H
ou

rs
 o

f r
id

es
 +

 h
ou

rs
 s

ch
ed

ul
in

g/
co

or
di

na
tin

g 
+ 

ho
ur

s 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t 
   

43



D
SC

 –
 C

lin
ic

al
 S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 R

ep
or

t 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

TP
C

s 
 

 
 

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
0 

C
SE

s 
 

5 
SC

s  
 

2 
N

TP
C

s 
 

66
 T

PC
s 

 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
1 

C
SE

s 
 

8 
SC

s  
 

1 
N

TP
C

s 
 

5 
TP

C
s 

 
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

1 
C

SE
s 

 
13

 S
C

s 
 

3 
N

TP
C

s 
 

71
 T

PC
s 

 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

2 
C

SE
s 

 
10

 S
C

s 
 

5 
N

TP
C

s 
 

65
 T

PC
s 

 
 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
50

%
 

 
 

13
0%

  
 

60
%

 
 

 
10

9%
  

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
 E

ve
nt

s:
 D

SC
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

D
is

AB
IL

IT
Y 

Re
so

ur
ce

 E
xp

o,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 c

lin
ic

al
 

su
pp

or
ts

. A
tte

nd
ee

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

n 
oc

cu
pa

tio
na

l t
he

ra
py

, c
ou

ns
el

in
g,

 p
sy

ch
ia

tr
y,

 a
nd

 p
sy

ch
ol

og
ic

al
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 Se
rv

ic
e/

Sc
re

en
in

g 
C

on
ta

ct
s:

 A
 to

ta
l o

f e
ig

ht
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

er
e 

sc
re

en
ed

 fo
r c

lin
ic

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r. 
 In

di
vi

du
al

 In
fo

: O
f t

he
 e

ig
ht

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

sc
re

en
ed

: F
iv

e 
w

er
e 

op
en

ed
 fo

r o
cc

up
at

io
na

l t
he

ra
py

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 o

ne
 w

as
 o

pe
ne

d 
fo

r a
 p

sy
ch

ol
og

ic
al

 
ev

al
ua

tio
n,

 o
ne

 in
di

vi
du

al
 w

ho
 w

as
 a

lre
ad

y 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

co
un

se
lin

g 
st

ar
te

d 
se

ei
ng

 p
sy

ch
ia

tr
y,

 a
nd

 o
ne

 p
er

so
n 

w
as

 re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 a

n 
ex

te
rn

al
 

co
un

se
lin

g 
pr

ov
id

er
 th

at
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

he
r i

ns
ur

an
ce

. 
 U

pd
at

e 
on

 D
SP

 S
up

po
rt

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t: 

Th
e 

D
SP

 S
up

po
rt

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
27

 D
SC

 s
ta

ff 
m

em
be

rs
 th

is
 q

ua
rt

er
. K

ey
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
a 

si
x s

es
si

on
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 s

er
ie

s 
at

 a
 C

D
S 

lo
ca

tio
n 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 b

eh
av

io
ra

l s
up

po
rt

s,
 p

os
iti

ve
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 ra

pp
or

t 
bu

ild
in

g;
 o

ffe
rin

g 
en

ha
nc

ed
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 C
IL

A 
st

aff
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 in

te
rp

er
so

na
l c

on
fli

ct
s 

am
on

g 
ho

us
em

at
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 m

ul
tip

le
 

on
si

te
 v

is
its

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
ed

 s
ta

ff 
tra

in
in

g;
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 v
is

ua
l s

up
po

rt
s 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

st
aff

 o
n 

vi
su

al
 s

up
po

rt
 s

of
tw

ar
e;

 c
re

at
in

g 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
be

ha
vi

or
 s

up
po

rt
 s

tra
te

gi
es

; a
nd

 c
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
st

at
e 

be
ha

vi
or

al
 te

am
 a

nd
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 te

am
 m

ee
tin

gs
. 

 O
cc

up
at

io
na

l T
he

ra
py

 U
pd

at
e:

 O
cc

up
at

io
na

l t
he

ra
py

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f n

ee
ds

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 w

he
el

ch
ai

r m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
se

at
in

g 
sy

st
em

s,
 s

en
so

ry
 b

as
ed

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 s

uc
ce

ss
 in

 d
ay

 p
ro

gr
am

 a
nd

 w
or

k 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ts
, a

nd
 

ho
m

e 
sa

fe
ty

 e
va

lu
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
m

ax
im

um
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 in

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
’s

 a
pa

rt
m

en
t. 

 Ex
tra

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
Ti

m
e:

 A
 to

ta
l o

f 3
 h

ou
rs

 w
er

e 
de

di
ca

te
d 

to
 b

ill
in

g 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

. 

44



 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

 
TP

C
 =

 Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
O

th
er

, a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

on
tra

ct
 

 
 

45



D
SC

 –
 C

om
m

un
ity

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r P

Y2
6 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ct

ivi
ty

 R
ep

or
t 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

at
a:

 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
TP

C
s 

 
 

 
 

 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
0 

C
SE

s 
 

2 
SC

s  
 

82
 T

PC
s 

 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
1 

C
SE

s 
 

3 
SC

s  
 

3 
TP

C
s 

 
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

1 
C

SE
s 

 
5 

SC
s  

 
85

 T
PC

s 
 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

4 
C

SE
s 

 
10

 S
C

s 
 

88
 T

PC
s 

 
 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
25

%
 

 
 

50
%

 
 

 
97

%
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

10
0%

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

th
ei

r e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t t
hi

s 
qu

ar
te

r. 
Tw

o 
jo

b 
se

ek
er

s 
tra

ns
iti

on
ed

 fr
om

 jo
b 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

nt
o 

co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

N
ot

ab
ly,

 b
ot

h 
po

si
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

w
ith

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

hi
rin

g 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
co

m
m

un
ity

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
fo

r t
he

 fi
rs

t t
im

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

Ba
th

 &
 B

od
y 

W
or

ks
 a

nd
 O

ut
ba

ck
 S

te
ak

ho
us

e.
 

 D
ur

in
g 

th
is

 re
po

rt
in

g 
pe

rio
d,

 S
up

po
rt

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

dj
us

te
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

, r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
st

aff
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y.
 T

hi
s 

sh
ift

 h
as

 
al

lo
w

ed
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 to

 fr
ee

 u
p 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l t

ea
m

 m
em

be
r a

t a
 s

at
el

lit
e 

w
or

k 
si

te
. T

hr
ee

 n
ew

 vo
lu

nt
ee

r s
ite

s 
w

er
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
th

is
 q

ua
rt

er
 a

s 
w

el
l: 

M
ah

om
et

 P
ub

lic
 L

ib
ra

ry
; T

ho
m

as
 P

ai
ne

 E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
l; 

an
d 

M
y 

Sw
ee

th
ea

rt
 B

ilo
g 

Vi
nt

ag
e 

Sh
op

. 
 A 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 fo

cu
s 

th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

 w
as

 ti
m

e 
sp

en
t c

on
du

ct
in

g 
to

ur
s 

of
 a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. T

he
se

 to
ur

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ith
 e

xp
os

ur
e 

to
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f w

or
kp

la
ce

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ts

, h
el

pi
ng

 th
em

 e
xp

lo
re

 in
te

re
st

s 
an

d 
be

tte
r u

nd
er

st
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t s

et
tin

gs
. A

t t
he

 s
am

e 
tim

e,
 th

es
e 

vi
si

ts
 o

ffe
re

d 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

an
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 le
ar

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 
D

SC
. B

us
in

es
se

s 
to

ur
ed

 in
cl

ud
ed

: C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

Po
lic

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t, 
C

la
rk

-L
in

ds
ey

, W
at

ch
fir

e,
 T

he
 L

ite
ra

ry
, a

nd
 R

al
ly

 H
ou

se
. F

ol
lo

w
-u

p 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

w
ith

 th
es

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
w

as
 a

ls
o 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l e
m

pl
oy

er
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
Sp

ur
lo

ck
 M

us
eu

m
, B

er
rie

s 
an

d 
Fl

ou
r, 

H
ab

ita
t R

eS
to

re
, E

xi
le

 o
n 

M
ai

n,
 D

is
h 

Pa
ss

io
na

te
 C

ui
si

ne
, D

el
ig

ht
 

Fl
ow

er
 F

ar
m

, a
nd

 C
en

tra
l I

lli
no

is
 B

ak
eh

ou
se

. 
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 b

us
in

es
s 

to
ur

s,
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

ed
 in

 s
ki

ll-
bu

ild
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 fo

cu
se

d 
on

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t r
ea

di
ne

ss
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 w
or

kp
la

ce
 

at
tir

e,
 m

an
ag

in
g 

w
or

kp
la

ce
 c

on
fli

ct
, t

ea
m

w
or

k,
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 w

or
kp

la
ce

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 n
av

ig
at

in
g 

th
e 

M
TD

. 
 

46



U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

 
TP

C
 =

 Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
O

th
er

, a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

on
tra

ct
 

 
 

47



D
SC

 –
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
irs

t S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r P

Y2
6 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ct

ivi
ty

 R
ep

or
t 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

at
a:

 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

TP
C

s 
 

 
 

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
0 

C
SE

s 
 

4 
SC

s  
 

10
5 

N
TP

C
s 

 
50

 T
PC

s 
 

 
 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
1 

C
SE

s 
 

4 
SC

s  
 

10
 N

TP
C

s 
 

4 
TP

C
s 

 
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

1 
C

SE
s 

 
8 

SC
s  

 
11

5 
N

TP
C

s 
 

54
 T

PC
s 

 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

4 
C

SE
s 

 
10

 S
C

s 
 

45
 N

TP
C

s 
 

45
 T

PC
s 

 
 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
25

%
 

 
 

80
%

 
 

 
25

6%
  

 
12

0%
  

 
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

 in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
irs

t p
ro

gr
am

 e
ng

ag
ed

 in
 a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 m

ea
ni

ng
fu

l c
om

m
un

ity
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 th

is
 q

ua
rt

er
. I

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 w

er
e 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
to

 n
ew

 lo
ca

l s
pa

ce
s 

an
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 v

is
its

 to
 a

re
a 

co
ffe

e 
sh

op
s,

 H
ar

dy
’s

 R
ei

nd
ee

r R
an

ch
, I

lli
ni

 R
ec

yc
lin

g,
 a

nd
 T

he
 Y

ar
d,

 
am

on
g 

ot
he

rs
. 

 Th
e 

Li
br

ar
y 

Ex
pl

or
er

s 
gr

ou
p 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

 C
en

tra
l I

lli
no

is
 li

br
ar

y 
cr

aw
l, 

vi
si

tin
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 li

br
ar

ie
s 

in
 B

em
en

t, 
Ar

ge
nt

a,
 M

ah
om

et
, S

t. 
Jo

se
ph

–
O

gd
en

, A
lle

rt
on

, D
an

vi
lle

, F
or

sy
th

, T
ol

on
o,

 a
nd

 D
ec

at
ur

. 
 Ad

di
tio

na
l c

om
m

un
ity

 e
xc

ur
si

on
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 tr
ip

s 
to

 th
e 

W
he

el
s 

of
 T

im
e 

M
us

eu
m

, P
er

fe
ct

 P
ai

r i
n 

W
ar

re
ns

bu
rg

, t
he

 H
ar

ris
 A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l M

us
eu

m
 

in
 A

tw
oo

d,
 F

or
es

t G
le

n 
Pr

es
er

ve
, W

el
do

n 
Sp

rin
gs

 S
ta

te
 P

ar
k,

 R
iv

er
 B

en
d 

Fo
re

st
 P

re
se

rv
e,

 C
lin

to
n 

La
ke

 S
ta

te
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
, a

nd
 T

he
 

Fe
st

iv
al

 o
f T

re
es

 in
 D

an
vi

lle
. P

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 a

ls
o 

at
te

nd
ed

 a
n 

Ill
in

i W
om

en
’s

 B
as

ke
tb

al
l g

am
e 

ag
ai

ns
t M

ur
ra

y 
St

at
e 

an
d 

ex
pl

or
ed

 th
e 

C
hi

ca
go

 
D

riv
es

 E
le

ct
ric

 e
ve

nt
 in

 O
ak

 B
ro

ok
. 

 Vo
lu

nt
ee

r e
ng

ag
em

en
t r

em
ai

ne
d 

st
ro

ng
. P

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

th
ei

r s
er

vi
ce

 a
t S

al
t &

 L
ig

ht
, M

ah
om

et
 P

ub
lic

 L
ib

ra
ry

, T
ho

m
as

 P
ai

ne
 

El
em

en
ta

ry
, a

nd
 T

he
 H

op
e 

C
en

te
r. 

Th
ey

 a
ls

o 
or

ga
ni

ze
d 

a 
ho

lid
ay

 fo
od

 d
on

at
io

n 
bo

x,
 w

ith
 a

ll 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 to

 lo
ca

l f
oo

d 
ba

nk
s.

 
 Th

e 
Po

si
tiv

ity
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 vo
lu

nt
ee

re
d 

w
ee

kl
y 

in
 a

 fo
ur

th
 g

ra
de

 c
la

ss
ro

om
, r

ea
di

ng
 to

 s
tu

de
nt

s.
 P

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 c

re
at

ed
 p

er
so

na
liz

ed
 b

oo
km

ar
ks

 
to

 h
el

p 
le

ar
n 

st
ud

en
ts

’ n
am

es
, a

nd
 o

ve
r t

im
e,

 s
tu

de
nt

s 
be

ga
n 

gr
ee

tin
g 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 b

y 
na

m
e 

an
d 

ea
ge

rly
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

th
ei

r v
is

its
. D

ur
in

g 
on

e 
sp

ec
ia

l s
es

si
on

, a
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 m
em

be
r w

or
e 

tra
di

tio
na

l U
kr

ai
ni

an
 c

lo
th

in
g 

an
d 

sh
ar

ed
 a

 S
la

vi
c 

st
or

y,
 o

ffe
rin

g 
cu

ltu
ra

l e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
te

ac
hi

ng
 

st
ud

en
ts

 h
ow

 to
 p

rin
t t

he
ir 

na
m

es
 in

 U
kr

ai
ni

an
. S

tu
de

nt
s 

la
te

r c
re

at
ed

 th
an

k 
yo

u 
ca

rd
s 

to
 e

xp
re

ss
 th

ei
r a

pp
re

ci
at

io
n.

 
 

48



A 
sp

ec
ia

l h
ol

id
ay

 re
ad

in
g 

al
so

 to
ok

 p
la

ce
 a

t H
an

d 
in

 H
an

d 
D

ay
ca

re
 in

 To
lo

no
, w

he
re

 vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 re

ad
 a

 s
ea

so
na

l s
to

ry
 to

 fo
ur

 a
nd

 fi
ve

 y
ea

r 
ol

ds
 a

nd
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 “m

ag
ic

al
 re

in
de

er
 fo

od
.” 

Th
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

e 
vi

si
t b

y 
si

ng
in

g 
to

 th
e 

C
F 

gr
ou

p,
 c

re
at

in
g 

a 
m

em
or

ab
le

 a
nd

 jo
yf

ul
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
fo

r a
ll 

in
vo

lv
ed

. 
 U

til
iz

at
io

n 
C

at
eg

or
y 

D
efi

ni
tio

ns
: 

C
SE

 =
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ev

en
ts

  
SC

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

r S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 C

on
ta

ct
s 

N
TP

C
 =

 N
on

-T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

 
 

TP
C

 =
 Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

O
th

er
, a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tra
ct

 

 
 

49



D
SC

 –
 C

om
m

un
ity

 L
ivi

ng
 S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 R

ep
or

t 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
TP

C
s 

 
 

 
 

 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
0 

C
SE

s 
 

2 
SC

s  
 

72
 T

PC
s 

 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
1 

C
SE

s 
 

1 
SC

s  
 

0 
TP

C
s 

 
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

1 
C

SE
s 

 
3 

SC
s  

 
72

 T
PC

s 
 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

2 
C

SE
s 

 
6 

SC
s  

 
78

 T
PC

s 
 

 
 

 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
50

%
 

 
 

50
%

 
 

 
92

%
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 q

ua
rt

er
, C

om
m

un
ity

 L
iv

in
g 

st
aff

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
ke

y 
sk

ill
s 

fo
r i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 li

vi
ng

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

ho
m

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
an

d 
us

e 
of

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

ph
ar

m
ac

y 
an

d 
he

al
th

 b
en

efi
ts

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

sc
he

du
le

 
tra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

M
TD

, A
D

A 
rid

es
, a

nd
 U

be
r. 

Ad
di

tio
na

l s
up

po
rt

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 c

oo
rd

in
at

in
g 

an
d 

at
te

nd
in

g 
m

ed
ic

al
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

, s
ho

pp
in

g 
fo

r e
ve

ry
da

y 
es

se
nt

ia
ls

, a
nd

 a
ss

is
tin

g 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
in

 s
tre

ng
th

en
in

g 
so

ci
al

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

 p
ee

rs
 a

nd
 fa

m
ily

. S
er

vi
ce

s 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

ha
nd

s 
on

 
an

d 
w

er
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 b
ot

h 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 w

ith
in

 in
di

vi
du

al
s’

 a
pa

rt
m

en
ts

. 
 Th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
fu

ll 
st

aff
in

g 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r, 

en
su

rin
g 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 o

f c
ar

e.
 In

 N
ov

em
be

r, 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

ed
 in

 a
 g

ro
up

 s
oc

ia
l o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 H
ar

dy
’s

 R
ei

nd
ee

r R
an

ch
 in

 R
an

to
ul

. P
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 e
nj

oy
ed

 h
ot

 c
oc

oa
, s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 

na
vi

ga
te

d 
th

e 
co

rn
 m

az
e,

 a
nd

 w
en

t o
n 

a 
gu

id
ed

 re
in

de
er

 to
ur

. P
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 e
nj

oy
ed

 th
e 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 fe

lt 
it 

w
as

 a
 g

re
at

 w
ay

 to
 k

ic
k 

off
 th

e 
ho

lid
ay

 s
ea

so
n!

 
 U

til
iz

at
io

n 
C

at
eg

or
y 

D
efi

ni
tio

ns
: 

C
SE

 =
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ev

en
ts

  
SC

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

r S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 C

on
ta

ct
s 

N
TP

C
 =

 N
on

-T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

 
 

TP
C

 =
 Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

O
th

er
, a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tra
ct

 

 

50



D
SC

 –
 C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 R

ep
or

t 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

TP
C

s 
 

 
 

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
0 

C
SE

s 
 

21
 N

TP
C

s 
 

29
 T

PC
s 

 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
2 

C
SE

s 
 

4 
N

TP
C

s 
 

2 
TP

C
s 

 
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

2 
C

SE
s 

 
25

 N
TP

C
s 

 
31

 T
PC

s 
 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

5 
C

SE
s 

 
12

 N
TP

C
s 

 
25

 T
PC

s 
 

 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
40

%
 

 
 

20
8%

  
 

12
4%

  
 

 
 

 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

In
 O

ct
ob

er
, p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 s

ol
d 

th
ei

r h
an

dm
ad

e 
cr

ea
tio

ns
 a

t t
he

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 E

xp
o 

at
 M

ar
ke

tp
la

ce
 M

al
l. 

In
 D

ec
em

be
r, 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 C

ro
w

 H
ol

id
ay

 
O

pe
n 

H
ou

se
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 th

e 
cr

ea
tiv

e 
w

or
k 

of
 p

ro
gr

am
 p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

rt
is

ts
. T

he
 e

ve
nt

 w
as

 a
 s

uc
ce

ss
 w

ith
 lo

ts
 o

f s
al

es
 

as
 s

ho
pp

er
s 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
ite

m
s 

fo
r t

he
m

se
lv

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

s.
 T

he
 e

ve
nt

 w
el

co
m

ed
 s

ev
er

al
 n

ew
 a

rt
is

an
s,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 th

em
 w

ith
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

in
tro

du
ce

 th
ei

r w
or

k 
to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, s

ha
re

 th
ei

r a
rt

is
tic

 jo
ur

ne
ys

, a
nd

 b
ui

ld
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

w
ith

 T
he

 C
ro

w
. 

 Th
e 

C
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to

 e
xp

an
d 

cr
ea

tiv
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pa

rt
ic

ip
an

t i
nt

er
es

ts
. S

ev
er

al
 n

ew
 o

ffe
rin

gs
 w

er
e 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
an

d 
qu

ic
kl

y 
be

ca
m

e 
po

pu
la

r. 
N

ew
 a

rt
is

tic
 a

nd
 s

ki
ll 

bu
ild

in
g 

gr
ou

ps
 o

ffe
re

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r i

nc
lu

de
d:

 
• 

Po
p 

M
us

ic
 M

on
da

ys
- P

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 le

ar
ne

d 
fo

un
da

tio
na

l g
ui

ta
r s

ki
lls

 w
ith

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
fro

m
 a

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l m
us

ic
ia

n.
 

• 
Kr

af
ty

 P
eo

pl
e-

 In
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
pl

or
ed

 u
pc

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
fu

rn
itu

re
 re

va
m

pi
ng

 te
ch

ni
qu

es
 to

 tr
an

sf
or

m
 it

em
s 

in
 th

ei
r p

er
so

na
l s

pa
ce

s.
 

• 
St

yl
e 

Se
ek

er
s-

 P
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 le
ar

ne
d 

ho
w

 to
 fi

nd
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

, s
ty

lis
h 

cl
ot

hi
ng

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 s

tra
te

gi
es

 fo
r s

ho
pp

in
g 

se
co

nd
ha

nd
 a

nd
 c

oo
rd

in
at

in
g 

ou
tfi

ts
 th

at
 re

fle
ct

 th
ei

r p
er

so
na

lit
ie

s.
 

• 
G

lu
e 

W
ith

 M
e-

 A
 c

ol
la

ge
 b

as
ed

 g
ro

up
 e

m
ph

as
iz

in
g 

cr
ea

tiv
e 

fre
ed

om
 th

ro
ug

h 
gl

ue
 c

en
te

re
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 m
ak

in
g 

bo
un

ci
ng

 b
al

ls
 a

nd
 s

al
t 

ar
t. 

Ac
tiv

iti
es

 s
up

po
rt

 fi
ne

 m
ot

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 ri

ch
 s

en
so

ry
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
. 

• 
D

o 
Li

ke
 D

is
ne

y-
 A

 c
re

at
iv

e 
ex

pl
or

at
io

n 
of

 2
0t

h 
ce

nt
ur

y 
an

im
at

io
n 

hi
st

or
y 

pa
ire

d 
w

ith
 th

em
ed

 a
rt

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 P

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 e

xa
m

in
ed

 th
e 

ev
ol

ut
io

n 
of

 a
ni

m
at

io
n 

fro
m

 e
ar

ly
 w

or
ks

 li
ke

 S
te

am
bo

at
 W

ill
ie

 to
 m

od
er

n 
cl

as
si

cs
 s

uc
h 

as
 T

he
 L

io
n 

Ki
ng

 a
nd

 A
la

dd
in

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 h

an
ds

 
on

 c
ra

fts
 in

sp
ire

d 
by

 e
ac

h 
er

a.
 

 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 

51



N
TP

C
 =

 N
on

-T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

 
 

TP
C

 =
 Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

O
th

er
, a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tra
ct

 

 
 

52



D
SC

 –
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t F

irs
t S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 R

ep
or

t 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
3 

C
SE

s 
 

 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
6 

C
SE

s 
 

 
 

 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

9 
C

SE
s 

 
 

 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

25
 C

SE
s 

 
 

 
 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
36

%
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

LE
AP

/F
ro

nt
 L

in
e 

St
aff

 Tr
ai

ni
ng

s-
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 s
ix

 fo
r Q

2 
• 

G
oo

d 
Ju

dy
s 

Es
pr

es
so

 &
 B

ag
el

 B
ar

, 6
18

02
: C

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

Fr
on

tli
ne

 S
ta

ff 
tra

in
in

g 
in

 p
er

so
n 

on
 1

0/
13

/2
02

5.
 T

he
 tw

o 
ow

ne
rs

 a
nd

 tw
o 

m
an

ag
er

s 
w

er
e 

in
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

. 
• 

H
ol

y 
C

ro
ss

 S
ch

oo
l, 

61
82

0:
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

Fr
on

tli
ne

 S
ta

ff 
tra

in
in

g 
in

 p
er

so
n 

on
 1

0/
14

/2
02

5.
 3

3 
st

aff
 a

tte
nd

ed
. 

• 
Su

zu
's

, a
 Ja

pa
ne

se
 B

ak
er

y,
 6

18
20

: C
om

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
LE

AP
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 p
er

so
n 

on
 1

1/
10

/2
02

5.
 T

he
 o

w
ne

r a
tte

nd
ed

. 
• 

C
ity

 o
f C

ha
m

pa
ig

n 
H

R 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t, 
61

82
0:

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
LE

AP
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 p
er

so
n 

on
 1

1/
20

/2
02

5.
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
7 

hu
m

an
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

pe
rs

on
ne

l i
n 

at
te

nd
an

ce
. 

• 
H

av
en

 o
f M

ea
do

w
br

oo
k,

 6
18

21
: C

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

LE
AP

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 v
irt

ua
lly

 o
n 

12
/9

/2
02

5.
 T

he
 fa

ci
lit

y 
di

re
ct

or
 a

nd
 th

e 
di

re
ct

or
 o

f n
ur

si
ng

 w
er

e 
in

 
at

te
nd

an
ce

. 
• 

Ra
nt

ou
l C

ity
 S

ch
oo

ls
, 6

18
66

: C
om

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
Fr

on
tli

ne
 S

ta
ff 

tra
in

in
g 

in
 p

er
so

n 
on

 1
2/

19
/2

02
5.

 T
he

re
 w

er
e 

14
 s

ta
ff 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

. 
 Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
th

re
e 

pe
op

le
 h

ire
d 

th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

 b
y 

LE
AP

 tr
ai

ne
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
: 

• 
Ra

nt
ou

l C
ity

 S
ch

oo
ls

- H
ire

d 
2 

pa
rt

-t
im

e 
w

or
ke

rs
 in

 fo
od

 s
er

vi
ce

. 
• 

H
ol

y 
C

ro
ss

 S
ch

oo
l- 

H
ire

d 
1 

pa
rt

 ti
m

e 
pe

rs
on

 a
s 

an
 a

id
e.

 
 Pr

og
ra

m
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t: 

• 
At

te
nd

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ne
tw

or
ki

ng
 e

ve
nt

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
co

nt
ac

ts
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

LE
AP

: C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ha

m
be

r o
f C

om
m

er
ce

- W
om

en
 

El
ev

at
in

g 
W

om
en

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
G

ro
up

; C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ha

m
be

r o
f C

om
m

er
ce

- C
ha

m
be

r F
irs

t F
rid

ay
 C

off
ee

; C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ha

m
be

r 
of

 C
om

m
er

ce
- T

ab
le

 fo
r T

en
; a

nd
 th

e 
di

sA
bi

lit
y 

Ex
po

. 
• 

13
4 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 w

er
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

ed
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

LE
AP

/F
ro

nt
lin

e 
St

aff
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 th

e 
D

D
IE

 d
ire

ct
or

y.
 

53



• 
A 

qu
ar

te
rly

 “N
ew

s 
Fl

as
h”

 e
m

ai
l w

as
 s

en
t o

ut
 to

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 L

EA
P 

an
d 

FL
S 

tra
in

ed
. I

t i
nc

lu
de

d 
a 

w
eb

in
ar

 fo
r s

m
al

l 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
bo

ut
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

 w
eb

ca
st

 a
bo

ut
 A

ss
is

tiv
e 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 a

nd
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

ns
. T

hi
s 

qu
ar

te
rly

 e
m

ai
l d

ire
ct

s 
re

ci
pi

en
ts

 
ba

ck
 to

 th
e 

C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

D
ire

ct
or

y 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

-In
cl

us
iv

e 
Em

pl
oy

er
s 

(D
D

IE
) w

eb
si

te
. 

• 
69

 n
ew

 u
se

rs
 v

is
ite

d 
th

e 
di

re
ct

or
y 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 G
oo

gl
e 

An
al

yt
ic

s.
 

 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

 
TP

C
 =

 Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
O

th
er

, a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

on
tra

ct
 

 
 

54



D
SC

 –
 F

am
ily

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r P

Y2
6 

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ct

ivi
ty

 R
ep

or
t 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

at
a:

 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
TP

C
s 

 
 

 
 

 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
5 

C
SE

s 
 

51
 S

C
s 

 
95

4 
TP

C
s 

 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
4 

C
SE

s 
 

49
 S

C
s 

 
65

 T
PC

s 
 

 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

9 
C

SE
s 

 
10

0 
SC

s 
 

10
19

 T
PC

s 
 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

15
 C

SE
s 

 
20

0 
SC

s 
 

65
5 

TP
C

s 
 

 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
60

%
 

 
 

50
%

 
 

 
15

6%
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

Fa
m

ily
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ta
ff 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
ed

 in
 fo

ur
 c

om
m

un
ity

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
ev

en
ts

 th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
di

sA
BI

LI
TY

 E
xp

o,
 a

 p
op

 u
p 

ev
en

t a
t 

So
cc

er
 P

la
ne

t, 
Tr

ee
 o

f H
op

e,
 a

nd
 th

e 
Pa

re
nt

 Ta
lk

 S
up

po
rt

 G
ro

up
s 

w
ith

 U
rb

an
a 

Ea
rly

 C
hi

ld
ho

od
. W

ee
kl

y 
pl

ay
gr

ou
ps

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
at

 b
ot

h 
Sa

lt 
&

 
Li

gh
t a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 T
he

 A
ut

is
m

 P
ro

je
ct

 (T
AP

). 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ta

l s
cr

ee
ni

ng
s 

w
er

e 
off

er
ed

 a
t l

oc
al

 d
ay

ca
re

 c
en

te
rs

, i
n 

ce
nt

er
 

at
 D

SC
, a

nd
 in

 fa
m

ily
 h

om
es

. 
Th

re
e 

sc
re

en
in

gs
 w

er
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 w
hi

ch
 fa

m
ili

es
 c

ho
se

 n
ot

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
ad

dr
es

s;
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt,
 th

es
e 

sc
re

en
in

gs
 a

re
 n

ot
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

D
D

B 
cl

ai
m

 s
ys

te
m

 o
r i

n 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

rly
 s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 c
on

ta
ct

 d
at

a.
 

 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

 
TP

C
 =

 Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
O

th
er

, a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

on
tra

ct
 

    

55



D
SC

 –
 In

di
vid

ua
l a

nd
 F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt 

Se
co

nd
 Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 R

ep
or

t 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

TP
C

s 
 

 
 

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
0 

C
SE

s 
 

4 
SC

s  
 

26
 N

TP
C

s 
 

 3
8 

TP
C

s 
 

 
 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
1 

C
SE

s 
 

1 
SC

s  
 

4 
N

TP
C

s 
 

1 
TP

C
s 

 
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

1 
C

SE
s 

 
5 

SC
s  

 
30

 N
TP

C
s 

 
39

 T
PC

s 
 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

3 
C

SE
s 

 
8 

SC
s  

 
20

 N
TP

C
s 

 
40

 T
PC

s 
 

 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
33

%
 

 
 

63
%

 
 

 
15

0%
  

 
98

%
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

Th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

, o
ne

 n
ew

 in
di

vi
du

al
 e

nr
ol

le
d 

in
 th

e 
Re

sp
ite

 P
ro

gr
am

 a
fte

r s
ec

ur
in

g 
PU

N
S 

pl
ac

em
en

t a
nd

 s
ub

m
itt

in
g 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 c
on

fir
m

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
. T

hr
ee

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ex
ite

d 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
: t

w
o 

re
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 a
no

th
er

 s
ta

te
, a

nd
 o

ne
 b

eg
an

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
H

BS
 w

ai
ve

r s
up

po
rt

. T
he

 
in

di
vi

du
al

’s
 lo

ng
 ti

m
e 

re
sp

ite
 p

ro
vi

de
r s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 tr

an
si

tio
ne

d 
to

 th
e 

st
at

e 
w

ai
ve

r p
ro

gr
am

 a
s 

an
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

pr
ov

id
er

, e
ns

ur
in

g 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 o
f 

ca
re

. R
es

pi
te

 s
up

po
rt

 is
 o

ffe
re

d 
ei

th
er

 d
ire

ct
ly

 in
 th

e 
ho

m
e 

or
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

m
m

un
ity

-b
as

ed
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 fu
nd

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
as

si
st

an
ce

. 
Fa

m
ili

es
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 to

 a
pp

ly
 fo

r s
ta

te
-fu

nd
ed

 re
sp

ite
 p

ro
gr

am
s.

 
 D

SC
 a

tte
nd

ed
 th

e 
di

sA
BI

LI
TY

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Ex

po
 a

s 
an

 e
xh

ib
ito

r. 
As

 c
om

m
un

ity
 m

em
be

rs
 in

qu
ire

d 
ab

ou
t a

va
ila

bl
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

Re
sp

ite
 P

ro
gr

am
 w

as
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

di
sc

us
si

on
. 

 Fo
ur

te
en

 a
dv

oc
at

es
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
qu

ar
te

r t
o 

le
ar

n 
ab

ou
t o

ne
 a

no
th

er
, e

xp
lo

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

s,
 a

nd
 

st
re

ng
th

en
 th

ei
r a

dv
oc

ac
y 

sk
ill

s.
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
to

pi
cs

 in
cl

ud
ed

 h
ow

 to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 le
gi

sl
at

or
s 

ab
ou

t c
ha

ng
es

 to
 S

N
AP

 b
en

efi
ts

 a
nd

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 h

ea
lth

y 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

w
ith

 fr
ie

nd
s 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
. T

w
o 

ne
w

 a
dv

oc
at

es
 h

av
e 

jo
in

ed
 th

e 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
a 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

fo
r h

ig
h 

sc
ho

ol
 s

tu
de

nt
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

ir 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l s
up

po
rt

s.
 

 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

 
TP

C
 =

 Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
O

th
er

, a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

on
tra

ct
 

56



D
SC

 –
 S

er
vic

e 
C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

Se
co

nd
 Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 R

ep
or

t 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
TP

C
s 

 
 

 
 

 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
0 

C
SE

s 
 

8 
SC

s  
 

27
1 

TP
C

s 
 

 
 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
1 

C
SE

s 
 

4 
SC

s  
 

4 
TP

C
s 

 
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

1 
C

SE
s 

 
12

 S
C

s 
 

27
5 

TP
C

s 
 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

4 
C

SE
s 

 
20

 S
C

s 
 

27
5 

TP
C

s 
 

 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
25

%
 

 
 

60
%

 
 

 
10

0%
  

 
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

C
as

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

a 
co

or
di

na
te

d,
 te

am
-b

as
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
er

e 
sa

fe
 a

nd
 h

ad
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 fo
od

, m
ed

ic
al

 c
ar

e,
 

an
d 

ot
he

r e
ss

en
tia

l r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

 Ke
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

is
 q

ua
rt

er
 in

cl
ud

ed
: 

• 
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

an
 in

di
vi

du
al

 in
 e

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
w

ith
 a

 fa
m

ily
 m

em
be

r t
o 

pr
ot

ec
t t

he
ir 

ho
us

in
g 

st
ab

ili
ty

. 
• 

Fa
ci

lit
at

in
g 

te
am

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

s,
 d

ev
el

op
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

, a
nd

 a
lig

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

up
po

rt
s 

fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
he

al
th

y 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
, b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s,
 a

nd
 s

el
f-a

dv
oc

ac
y.

 
• 

As
si

st
in

g 
a 

co
up

le
 w

ith
 is

su
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
re

in
st

at
em

en
t o

f t
he

ir 
M

ed
ic

ai
d 

be
ne

fit
s.

 
• 

H
el

pi
ng

 tw
o 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ob
ta

in
 S

N
AP

 b
en

efi
ts

 a
fte

r m
ul

tip
le

 d
en

ia
ls

, o
ffe

rin
g 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

• 
C

ol
la

bo
ra

tin
g 

w
ith

 e
xt

er
na

l a
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 m
em

be
rs

 to
 g

ui
de

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

si
tu

at
io

ns
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

th
e 

le
ga

l s
ys

te
m

. 
 U

til
iz

at
io

n 
C

at
eg

or
y 

D
efi

ni
tio

ns
: 

C
SE

 =
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ev

en
ts

  
SC

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ta

ct
 o

r S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 C

on
ta

ct
s 

N
TP

C
 =

 N
on

-T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

 
 

TP
C

 =
 Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

O
th

er
, a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tra
ct

 

 

57



D
SC

 –
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 R
et

en
tio

n 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

ec
on

d 
Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 

Re
po

rt 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

 
 

 
 

O
th

er
  

 
 

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
1 

C
SE

  
 

 
0 

O
th

er
 

 
 

 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
0 

C
SE

s 
 

 
14

2 
O

th
er

 
 

 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

1 
C

SE
  

 
 

14
2 

O
th

er
 

 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

2 
C

SE
s 

 
 

16
0 

O
th

er
 

 
 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
50

%
 

 
 

 
89

%
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

• 
14

2 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 re

te
nt

io
n 

bo
nu

s 
du

rin
g 

th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

. 
• 

O
ne

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 a

tte
nd

ed
 a

n 
in

-p
er

so
n 

N
AD

SP
 F

ro
nt

lin
e 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
 Tr

ai
ni

ng
 h

el
d 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r. 

 U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

 
TP

C
 =

 Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
O

th
er

, a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

on
tra

ct
 

     

58



 PA
C

E 
– 

C
on

su
m

er
 C

on
tro

l i
n 

Pe
rs

on
al

 S
up

po
rt 

Se
co

nd
 Q

ua
rte

r P
Y2

6 
Pr

og
ra

m
 A

ct
ivi

ty
 

Re
po

rt 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 D
at

a:
 

U
til

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

C
SE

s 
 

 
SC

s 
 

 
N

TP
C

s  
 

O
th

er
  

 
 

1st
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
9 

C
SE

s 
 

61
 S

C
s 

 
24

 N
TP

C
s 

 
2 

O
th

er
 

 
 

2nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
  

 
7 

C
SE

s 
 

38
 S

C
s 

 
5 

N
TP

C
s 

 
1 

O
th

er
 

 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

16
 C

SE
s 

 
99

 S
C

s 
 

29
 N

TP
C

s 
 

3 
O

th
er

 
 

An
nu

al
 Ta

rg
et

 
 

20
 C

SE
s 

 
25

0 
SC

s 
 

30
 N

TP
C

s 
 

9 
O

th
er

 
 

Pe
rc

en
t M

et
 

 
80

%
 

 
 

40
%

 
 

 
97

%
 

 
 

33
%

 
 

 
 

Ag
en

cy
 C

om
m

en
ts

: 

PA
C

E 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 o

ffe
r i

n-
pe

rs
on

 o
rie

nt
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 o
ne

-o
n-

on
e 

ap
po

in
tm

en
ts

 a
t t

he
 P

AC
E 

off
ic

e 
du

rin
g 

th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

 to
 re

cr
ui

t P
SW

s.
 P

AC
E 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

in
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, j
ob

 p
os

tin
gs

, a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ve
nt

s 
to

 re
cr

ui
t P

SW
s.

 
 PA

C
E 

st
aff

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 e

ve
nt

s 
th

is
 q

ua
rt

er
: 

 - M
on

th
ly

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

w
ith

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f I
lli

no
is

 F
am

ily
 R

es
ili

en
cy

 C
en

te
r 

- M
on

th
ly

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

W
or

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
 m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 F

am
ily

 R
es

ili
en

cy
 C

en
te

r 
- P

ro
gr

am
 P

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

at
 S

ch
oo

l o
f S

oc
ia

l W
or

k 
- C

U
 A

gi
ng

 W
ee

k 
PA

C
E 

O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 
- U

IU
C

 C
AR

D
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
- B

ey
on

d 
th

e 
Bo

rd
er

s-
 B

oo
th

 a
t t

he
 I 

H
ot

el
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Fa
ir 

- D
is

ab
ili

ty
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Ex
po

 
 PA

C
E 

al
so

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 re
ac

h 
ou

t a
nd

 a
tte

m
pt

 to
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

te
 w

ith
 th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f I

lli
no

is
 S

ch
oo

l o
f S

oc
ia

l W
or

k,
 F

am
ily

 R
es

ili
en

ce
 C

en
te

r, 
En

vi
si

on
 U

nl
im

ite
d,

 a
nd

 p
ar

en
t g

ro
up

s 
at

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
, I

RC
, N

AM
I, 

an
d 

D
SC

. 

59



T h
er

e 
w

er
e 

no
 T

PC
s 

th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

, a
s 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

be
in

g 
se

rv
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
is

 fu
nd

in
g 

ar
e 

th
os

e 
se

ek
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t a
s 

PS
W

s,
 a

nd
 th

er
e 

is
 

no
 vo

ca
tio

na
l p

ro
gr

am
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r c

on
su

m
er

s 
w

ith
 I/

D
D

. H
ow

ev
er

, o
ng

oi
ng

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

n 
is

 ta
ki

ng
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

 D
RS

, I
RC

, C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
ho

ic
es

, a
nd

 th
e 

D
RS

 v
oc

at
io

na
l p

ro
gr

am
. T

he
se

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 a

re
 re

fe
rr

in
g 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
ith

 I/
D

D
 a

nd
 th

ei
r f

am
ili

es
 to

 P
AC

E 
to

 h
ire

 a
n 

or
ie

nt
ed

 P
SW

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
gi

st
ry

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
is

 fu
nd

in
g.

 

P A
C

E 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 o

ffe
r q

ua
rt

er
ly

 P
SW

 a
dv

is
or

ie
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r c
on

su
m

er
s 

an
d 

PS
W

s 
to

 c
on

ne
ct

 a
nd

 d
is

cu
ss

 P
SW

 
pr

og
ra

m
 to

pi
cs

. T
he

 P
SW

 a
dv

is
or

y 
w

as
 h

el
d 

on
 W

ed
ne

sd
ay

, D
ec

em
be

r 1
0,

 2
02

5,
 a

nd
 h

el
d 

an
 e

m
ai

l P
SW

 A
dv

is
or

y 
on

 F
oo

d 
an

d 
C

lo
th

in
g 

W
in

te
r R

es
ou

rc
es

. 

P A
C

E 
ha

s 
se

nt
 5

 s
et

s 
of

 re
fe

rra
ls

 th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

. 

U
t il

iz
at

io
n 

C
at

eg
or

y 
D

efi
ni

tio
ns

: 
C

SE
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ev
en

ts
  

SC
 =

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ta
ct

 o
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
N

TP
C

 =
 N

on
-T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

n 
C

lie
nt

s 
 

TP
C

 =
 Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
n 

C
lie

nt
s 

O
th

er
, a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
on

tra
ct

 =
 S

uc
ce

ss
fu

l P
SW

 M
at

ch
es

 

60



 
 
 
 
 
PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data Charts 
for I/DD programs funded by the Champaign 
County Developmental Disabilities Board and 
Champaign County Mental Health Board 
 

61



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

CCRPC - Community Services
Commuity Life Short Term Assistance $58,008 PY26 Q2 IDDSI
11 people were served, for a total of 58 hours 

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client(s) 2 2
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 1 1
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 4 20% 23 40%
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 10 50% 24 41%
With Person Served - Off Site 2 10% 5 9%
With Person Served - On Site 3 15% 3 5%

20 58

2

1

4

10

2

3

0 2 4 6 8 10 12

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

2

1

23

24

5

3

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

62



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

CCRPC - Community Services
Decision Support Person $106,260 PY26 Q2
95 people were served, for a total of 1,192 hours 

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client(s) 4 4
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 2 2
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 77 31% 124 10%
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 87 35% 624 52%
With Person Served - Off Site 77 31% 140 12%
With Person Served - On Site 88 35% 298 25%
Total 252 1192

4

2

77

87

77

88

0 20 40 60 80 100

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

4

2

124

624

140

298

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

63



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

CCRPC - Head Start/Early Head Start
Early Childhood Mental Health Svs $54,200 PY26 Q2 MHB
31 people were served, for a total of 183 hours 

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total 
New Client(s) 16 17
With Person Served - On Site 28 166
Total 99 183

16

28

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

New Client(s)

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

17

166

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

New Client(s)

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

64



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

Community Choices
Customized Employment $64,000 PY26 Q2
35 people were served for a total of 941 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client(s) 2 5% 2 0%
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 3 3
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 17 268
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 28 74% 341 36%
With Person Served - Off Site 27 71% 217 23%
With Person Served - On Site 19 50% 110 147%
Total 38 941

2

3

17

28

27

19

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

2

3

268

341

217

110

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

65



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

Community Choices
Inclusive Community Support $58,250 PY26 Q2
18 people were served for a total of 508 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 1 1
Closed/Discharged Client 4 4
On behalf of Person Served - Off Site 10 51
On behalf of Person Served - On Site 13 104
With Person Served - Off Site 15 297
With Person Served - On Site 10 48% 51 10%
Total 21 508

1

4

10

13

15

10

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

New Client

Closed/Discharged Client

On behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

1

4

51

104

297

51

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350

New Client

Closed/Discharged Client

On behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

66



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

DSC
Clinical Services $65,750 PY26 Q2
55 people were served for a total of 403 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client(s) 6 6
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 6 6
Coordination of Mental Health Services (Staff Hou 37 #DIV/0! 123 31%
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 1 2
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 45 92
With Person Served - Off Site 8 47
With Person Served - On Site 41 #DIV/0! 127 32%
Total 403

6

6

37

1

45

8

41

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

Coordination of Mental Health Services (Staff Hour)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

6

6

123

2

92

47

127

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

Coordination of Mental Health Services (Staff Hour)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

67



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

DSC
Community Employment $130,750 PY26 Q2
68 people were served for a total of 2,364 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client(s) 3 3
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 5 5
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 21 29% 29 1%
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 58 81% 877 37%
With Person Served - Off Site 61 85% 1243 53%
With Person Served - On Site 44 61% 207 9%
Total 72 2364

3

5

21

58

61

44

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

3

5

29

877

1243

207

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

68



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

DSC
Community First $247,500 PY26 Q2
53 people were served, for a total of 9,305 hours 

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client(s) 4 4
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 4 4
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 21 38% 177 2%
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 51 91% 1436 15%
With Person Served - Off Site 47 84% 3851 41%
With Person Served - On Site 47 84% 3833 41%
Total 56 9305

4

4

21

51

47

47

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

4

4

177

1436

3851

3833

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000 4500

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

69



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

DSC
Community Living $157,000 PY26 Q2
69 people were served for a total of 3,787 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 1 1
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 68 117% 1083 29%
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 68 117% 1376 36%
With Person Served - Off Site 41 71% 836 22%
With Person Served - On Site 34 59% 491 13%
Total 58 3787

1

68

68

41

34

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

1

1083

1376

836

491

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

70



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

DSC
Connections $30,500 PY26 Q2
20 people were served, for a total of 597 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client(s) 2 2% 2%
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 1 1
With Person Served - Off Site 19 594

20 594

19

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20

With Person Served - Off Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

594

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

With Person Served - Off Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

71



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

DSC
Family Development $175,500 PY26 Q2 MHB
207 people were served for a total of 2,276 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client(s) 65 12% 65 3%
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 47 47
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 126 23% 2164 95%
Total 543 2276

65

47

126

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

65

47

2164

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

72



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

DSC
Individual and Family Support $80,000 PY26  Q2
51 people were served for a total of 2,575 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client(s) 1 1
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 3 3
Coordination of IDS (staff hour) 38 109
NTPC - With Person Served - Off Site 1 1
NTPC - With Person Served - On Site 16 37
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 2 4
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 23 43% 68 3%
With Person Served - Off Site 23 43% 2330 90%

5 22
Total 54 2575

1

3

38

1

16

2

23

23

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

Coordination of IDS (staff hour)

NTPC - With Person Served - Off Site

NTPC - With Person Served - On Site

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

1

3

109

1

37

4

68

2330

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

Coordination of IDS (staff hour)

NTPC - With Person Served - Off Site

NTPC - With Person Served - On Site

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

73



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

DSC
Service Coordination $125,000 PY26  Q2
238 people were served, for a total of 2,570 hours 

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client(s) 4 2% 12 0%
Closed/Discharged Client(s) 8 8
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 3 3
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 233 95% 2258 88%
With Person Served - Off Site 15 6% 65 3%
With Person Served - On Site 39 16% 224 9%

246 2570

4

8

3

233

15

39

0 50 100 150 200 250

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

12

8

3

2258

65

224

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500

New Client(s)

Closed/Discharged Client(s)

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

74



CCDDB/CCMHB I/DD Programs PY2026 2nd Quarter Service Data

PACE
Consumer Control in Personal Support $11,493 PY26 Q2
5 PSWs registered, 1 Successful PSW match, & 163 total program hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
PSW Registry Completion 5 #DIV/0! 5 3%
Successful PSW Match(es) 1 1
Reporting/Planning (Staff hour) 3 #DIV/0! 125 77%
Program Promotion (Staff hour) 2 32

0 163

5

1

3

2

0 1 2 3 4 5 6

PSW Registry Completion

Successful PSW Match(es)

Reporting/Planning (Staff hour)

Program Promotion (Staff hour)

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

5

1

125

32

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

PSW Registry Completion

Successful PSW Match(es)

Reporting/Planning (Staff hour)

Program Promotion (Staff hour)

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

75


	1 DDB agenda 2-25-26
	Champaign County Board for Care and Treatment of Persons with a Developmental Disability, referred to as
	Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB)
	Wednesday, February 25, 2026, 9:00 AM Meeting Agenda

	2 DDBminutes 012826
	_____________________________________________________________________________
	CHAMPAIGN COUNTY BOARD FOR CARE AND TREATMENT OF PERSONS WITH A DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY (CCDDB) MEETING
	Minutes January 28, 2026
	This meeting was held at the Scott Bennett Administrative Center
	102 E. Main St., Urbana, IL  61802
	and with remote access via Zoom.
	9:00 a.m.
	Roll call was taken, and a quorum was present.
	Blank Page

	3 Vendor Invoice List JAN 2026 DDB
	DDB

	4 Vendor Invoice List JAN 2026 IDDSI
	IDDSI

	5 Staff Report KIM
	6 Staff Report LEON
	7 Staff Report STEPHANIEFEB26
	SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY:
	2nd Quarter Reporting 2026:
	Audits:
	Trainings:
	Community Awareness/Anti-Stigma Efforts/Alliance for Inclusion and Respect (AIR):
	Other:

	Blank Page

	9 DDB Bylaws Rev 2025
	Adopted by the CCDDB 1/4/05.  Amended 12/5/06 and 7/23/14 and 6/23/2021 and 1/22/2025.

	10 DDB BMemo PY27 Review Process
	BRIEFING MEMORANDUM
	Background:
	From the Allocation Process Timeline:
	Expectations and Considerations for the Process:

	11 DD PY27 Requests Comparisons Reviewers
	PY2026 I-DD Funding Requests

	11 DDB PY27 Review Checklist
	Minimal responsiveness (staff confirm first):        Y/N   concerns/comments
	DDB Priority Categories:        check appropriate
	Best Value Considerations:         Y/N     concerns/comments

	17  DMemo CUAN Request
	Purpose:
	Statutory Authority:
	Background:
	Update:
	Suggested Actions:

	17 Letter of Disengagement 1.12.26
	17 Request for More Time CUAN
	Special Request for Consideration by CCDDB or CCMHB 

	21 PY2026 Q2 Program Reports
	CCRPC - Community Services - Community Life Short Term Assistance Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	CCRPC - Community Services – Decision Support Person Centered Planning Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	CCRPC - Head Start-Early Head Start – Early Childhood Mental Health Svs Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	CU Early – CU Early Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	Community Choices – Customized Employment Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	Community Choices – Inclusive Community Support Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	Community Choices – Self-Determination Support Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	Community Choices – Staff Recruitment and Retention Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	Community Choices – Transportation Support Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	DSC – Clinical Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	DSC – Community Employment Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	DSC – Community First Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	DSC – Community Living Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	DSC – Connections Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	DSC – Employment First Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	DSC – Family Development Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	DSC – Individual and Family Support Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	DSC – Service Coordination Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	DSC – Workforce Retention and Development Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report
	PACE – Consumer Control in Personal Support Second Quarter PY26 Program Activity Report

	22 PY2026 Q2 Service Data Full
	PY2026 Q2 Service Data Cover.pdf
	PY2026 Q2 Service Data.pdf
	CCRPC CLSTA
	CCRPC DSP
	CCRPC HSEHS
	CC CE
	CC ICS
	DSC Clin
	DSC CE
	DSC Comm. 1st
	DSC CL
	DSC Connections
	DSC FDC
	DSC IFS
	DSC SC
	PACE CCPSW





